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Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to present to shareholders the
annual results of Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its

subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2013.

| am taking this opportunity to express our gratitude to the Group’s staff for their

contributions enabling the Group to work through a tough year.

RESULTS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 March 2013, due to the impact of discontinued business,
turnover of continuing business was reported as HK$547.9 million (2012:
HK$643.0 million, restated), representing a decrease of 14.8% when compared
with last financial year. Gross profit decreased by 2.6% to HK$68.7 million (2012:
HK$70.5 million).

. The earnings of continuing business before interest, tax, depreciation
and amortization (EBITDA) were HK$23.0 million (2012: HK$51.5 million),
representing a decrease of HK$28.5 million when compared to the last

corresponding period.

. The operating profit (EBIT) of the continuing business of the Group was
HK$16.7 million (2012: HK$44.4 million), representing an decrease of
HK$27.7 million when compared to the last corresponding period.

o The net loss of the Group after the loss from discontinued operations
was HK$170.7 million (2012: profit HK$8.8 million), representing an

decrease of HK$179.5 million when compared to the last year.

The Board of Directors has not recommended any payment of a final dividend.

During the year, the Group did not declare any interim dividend.

At 31 March 2013, the Group’s current assets amounted to HK$272.7 million
(2012: HK$609.3 million) and the shareholders’ equity were HK$212.9 million
(2012: HK$378.5 million). The current liabilities were HK$225.1 million (2012:
HK$429.9 million).
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During the year, the Group had a major disposal of subsidiaries in electronics
components distribution segment and resulted in substantial decrease in current
assets and current liabilities, including bank borrowings. The inventory level,
due to the same reason and an impairment for discontinued operations in
manufacturing segment, decreased to HK$98.0 million (2012: HK$262.0 million).
Average stock turnover was around 75 days based on closing stock at 31 March
2013 (2012: 70 days). The trade receivable (excluding notes receivable) also

decreased by HK$97.1 million to HK$87.8 million (2012: HK$184.9 million).

Because of the low utilization of banking facilities, the year end cash and bank
balances were HK$60.2 million (2012: HK$105.4 million). Total available banking
facilities of the Group were approximately HK$190.1 million (2012: HK$389.8
million), of which HK$75.1 million was available for use (2012: HK$78.7 million).
Finance lease obligations outstanding as at 31 March 2013 amounted to HK$1.2
million (2012: HK$2.4 million). At 31 March 2013, the Company committed
corporate guarantees of HK$293.0 million (2012: HK$484.0 million) in favor of
banks for the granting of banking facilities to certain subsidiaries. The gearing
ratio, which was defined as total borrowings after netting off cash and cash
equivalents (net debt), to total capital (being total equity plus net debt) was 20%
(2012: 30%).

The Group’s assets were mostly financed by shareholders’ equity, trade
payables and bank borrowings. Trade payables were repayable within one year.
Bank borrowings comprised trade financing repayable within one year and term
loans repayable in installments of 2 to 6 years based on original contractual

maturity.

The borrowings were mostly denominated in Hong Kong dollars and US
dollars to prevent currency risk. The Group’s cash and cash equivalents were
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, US dollars, Canadian dollars and Renminbi.
The Group matched the payment and receipts of foreign currency arising from
routine purchases and sales to control and minimize the financial cost and
exchange risk. Most of the Group’s borrowings were interest bearing at floating
rates which were based on the Hong Kong HIBOR rate or London LIBOR rate.
As substantial part of trade payable and bank borrowings were denominated in
Hong Kong and US dollars, the exchange risk for the Group was not expected
to be material, therefore the Group does not use derivative financial instruments

for speculative purpose.
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Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited

In the reported year, the Group successfully completed a rights issue of
78,847,889 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each in the share capital at a subscription
price of HK$0.20 per rights share in the proportion of one rights share for every
four shares in issue, raising net proceeds of HK$14,923,000 for working capital

purpose. The Group did not repurchase any ordinary shares in the open market.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECT

In the reported year, due to the increase in minimum wages, labor shortage and
appreciation of Renminbi, labor cost and other overheads of the manufacturing
segment kept increasing. In the manufacturing segment of consumer electronics
and telecommunications, due to the prolonged contraction of the American
and European markets and the keen competition from small local Chinese
manufacturers, the Group had suffered considerable losses in this segment. The
Group has discontinued this business segment to eliminate continuous losses.
The Group has also disposed part of the business in the segment of electronic

components distribution to eliminate the high risk and low margin operations.

In these discontinued operations, the Group had also provided for substantial
impairment of plant and machinery, production equipment, tools, inventories and
account receivables. This, being set off by the gain on disposal of subsidiaries
of HK$39.5 million, has resulted in a loss from discontinued operations of
HK$184.6 million.

After the discontinuation of the Consumer Electronics and Electronic
Components and Parts Manufacturing segment and after the disposition of some
of the subsidiaries in electronic component distribution, the Group is engaged in
the following major businesses:

— Electronic Components Distribution;

— Personal Computer Products Distribution; and

— EMS (Contract Electronic Manufacturing Services).

Electronic Components Distribution

Turnover of electronic components distribution segment was HK$201.0 million

(2012: HK$210.6 million,
compared with the last financial year.

restated) representing a decrease of 4.6% when
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Business in this segment is mainly to act as authorized distributor of various
renowned brand names including the Group’s own manufactured electronic
components. Major customers are manufacturers in Hong Kong and the PRC.
Products of this segment include diodes, transistors, integrated circuits (IC),
power management and devices, optical-electronics and illuminations as well as

discrete components.

The Group has about 30 years of experience in the business of distribution of
electronic components. In addition to its solid base in Hong Kong, the Group
is one of the pioneer distributors to penetrate in the PRC market. The Group
has built up strong sales network and good logistics foundation in major PRC
cities. The performance of Shenzhen, Shanghai and Beijing sales offices are
outstanding among competitors. In order to explore new business opportunities,
the Group has further strengthened the engineering capability in providing total
solutions to customers and will continue bringing in new principal suppliers to

sustain future growth.

The Group has marketed an array of authorized distributorships of products
from Rohm, Liteon, Arnold Magnetics, Diodes, SDC, Everlight, Havartech, PFC
Device, AEM, Micrometal, Chino-Excel Technology (CET), and the Group’s own
brand COS and TIP.

Beijing, Shanghai and Shenzhen sales divisions kept playing an important role
in this segment. The Group has also established sales offices in Zhaoging and
Chengdu.

Personal Computer Products Distribution

Turnover of this segment was HK$268.6 million (2012: HK$274.9 million) which
represented a decrease of 2.3% in the reported year.

Business in this segment is steady. In the reported year, the Group has extended
the business from the main stream personal computers to the increasing demand
for tablets, portable devices and peripherals. In addition to its core business, the
Group continued to explore the business to mass merchants. Profit contribution

from mass merchant business is improving.
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Daiwa Associate Ho\dmgs Limited

The Group has more than 20 years of experience in the market of personal
computer systems and parts in North America. Products in this segment include
motherboards, display cards, hard disk drives, optical storage devices, computer
cases, power supplies, software, memories, desktop computers, notebook

computers, tablet computers and computer accessories.

EMS (Contract Electronic Manufacturing Services)

Due to the elimination of some unprofitable products, turnover of this segment
decreased to HK$78.3 million (2012: HK$157.6 million), representing a decrease

of 50.3% when compared to last year.

The Group has engaged in the professional production of telecommunication
modules in mobile phone base stations, radar parts and electronic modules in
automobiles as well as PCB assembly for industrial purpose products. The EMS
plant is equipped with high speed SMT production lines with nitrogen filled reflow
furnaces, precise solder paste screen printer, etc. Process reliability can be
ensured by the inhouse RoHS Scanning Systems and X-Ray Inspection Machine

and antistatic clear room.

FUTURE PROSPECT

After the strategic alignment of the Group’s business direction, the Group will
focus in the business of low risk and higher gross margin with relative lower
inventory levels. The Group expects that the business operation for the coming
years will be more cost effective with reduced working capital requirement and
more in-depth management concentration. This change releases resources of

the Group to better identify the opportunity of growth.

In the segment of Electronic Components Distribution, the Group will recover
the turnover of the disposed business of this segment by the establishment
of new distributorship of products from new principal suppliers. In addition to
the existing product lines, the segment will also target the markets of optical
electronics, illuminations and power management devices which are expected to

have active growth in the coming years.



President’s Statement

BABMERSHEBKARE - ARELEGRYEK
SRR RN RELHD - EERANTERNE
BEIER - WO HMEAEPEARERIRERER - A
REFTZRBEARTREARAZFNEBNER - A

EEH#&%EM;¢ EBEABMDHES - WE—F2

BRI FIREMANEDEF HEMF TS - %ﬂ?ﬁ’\]é\fﬂﬁ
RERFEBHEA B D BHRE

EFHEEARNEERSGEMS) DS E TERABESR
& BRIANEERMNERAREN - AR - BFE
RIETEATEE I - R RN BRI o ARNE B 1R B 2R
FEBBEREMER -

RTRHERRERHRE T RARNZERE - ~A&E
EERGEARARRRE R — LR E -

REBEADRIEEBNEREK  SELEGSHHEER
ENBEROERNNAIERH - REBIRFEINFIH

MEEAS » UERMAERNEENA S AHERED -

EEERZEE T —AVRFESeRTERRNT —
E °
BT
R-ZE—=6=ZA=+—0 AEEARIELEEFH
BESONE HERAN\BLEE(CE——F=7
=+—B: —F=ZEHEER) HHRNEE MEAR
A e

E2%%%\\E£Z**E$E}F?n'i%%§“&¥§fBU%II{’E%@E
MiEmmEE - XBE2FHERIERA: AR
REANE %?a’fﬁﬂﬁf"ﬂm —REERFDIN  IFEEF
IRIEAT - R T EP 2 BRI R A A KRB L - £ETT
RfteESAABEELBRENG THESERES -

Business in the personal computer business is steady. The Group is actively
sourcing for the opportunity to act as authorized distributor of new suppliers.
With the day by day increase in business from mega stores, this segment
has established sourcing office in Mainland China to ensure more varieties of
products with good quality and pricing. The Group will continue to diversify the
personal computer distribution business to further penetrate into the field of
tablet computers and smartphone accessories. The consolidation of the number

of competitors will provide good opportunity for the growth of the segment.

In EMS (Contract Electronic Manufacturing Services) segment, after elimination of
low margin products, the earning per worker increased substantially. At the same
time, order forecast from customers, especially on telecommunication modules,

is increasing. The Group expects that this business will grow in the coming year.

To further utilize unemployed facilities after changing the direction in
manufacturing business, the Group has already started to lease out some of the

shop floors in the production site in Heyuan.

After consolidation of resources from discontinued business, the Group is
actively looking for new partners with niche product portfolios. The Group also
focuses on training new management talents to ensure they are aligned with the

strategic outlook of the Group.

The management believes that in the coming fiscal year, the Group will start a

new page of steady growth.

Employees

At 31 March 2013, after discontinuing the business segment in consumer
electronics, the Group employed a total of approximately 800 employees (31

March 2012: 2,300 employees) located in Hong Kong, Canada and PRC.

The Group’s remuneration policy is in line with the prevailing market practices
and is determined on the basis of performance and experience of the individual.
Sales personnel are remunerated by salaries and incentives in accordance
with the achievement of their sales target. General staff are offered year-end
discretionary bonuses, which are based on the divisional performance and
individual appraisals. The Group also provides a Mandatory Provident Fund or

ORSO scheme and medical benefits to all Hong Kong employees.
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Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited

The Group is committed to devoting more resources in providing internal and
external training to the employees. In addition to sending staff to participate in
seminars and lectures, the Group continues recommending that qualified staff
take part in professional courses such as the ISO9000, TS16949 and Six-Sigma
Quality Systems. The training programs not only enhance employees’ career
development and professional knowledge, but also contribute to upgrading the

management system of the Group.



I 2

Financial Summary

T FEHMBEHRE

UNTAEEEBEREFE2AHEE BEREE-

EEBHELLEY)

BEB(CRIEREER)

CE L

PR R FE( A, (E1E)

e fn i (B

K E A

PR g an

SRR E M =

REns B ER

BIEE : AHIABETERLREER  RAFHBHETBE

Turnover (Continuing

operations)

Turnover (Discontinued

operations)

Total turnover

Profit/(loss) attributable

to shareholders
Total assets
Total liabilities
Net assets
Share capital

Share premium and

other reserves
Shareholders’ equity

Non-controlling

interests

Total equity

REFE2EEBUFEIUTAAFER -

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The following is a summary of the consolidated results, assets and liabilities of

the Group for the last five years.

—2-= — — e —
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
FHET FET FET FEr FET
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
(E31) (E31) (E51) (&%)

(restated) (restated) (restated) (restated)

547,916 643,016 713,445 557,409 693,188
500,246 765,601 1,067,565 1,070,968 848,946
1,048,162 1,408,617 1,781,010 1,628,377 1,642,134
(171,008) 8,786 8,194 (81,630) 7,115
438,598 817,513 868,325 881,902 745,318
225,692 439,049 497,306 520,902 360,747
212,906 378,464 371,019 361,000 384,571
39,424 31,539 30,394 30,394 30,364
173,267 346,976 340,651 330,252 353,732
212,691 378,515 371,045 360,646 384,096
215 (51) (26) 354 475
212,906 378,464 371,019 361,000 384,571

Note: Turnover of each of the previous periods included in the five year financial summary
has been restated to conform to the current year presentation as a result of the

discontinued operations.
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EEPBHBE FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY (continued)

EEFE
Net Assets
B&E#r

HK$ million

S
Turnover
B&E%r
HK$ million
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—F-CHERFEXBEF 2EXB(BALE)
TURNOVER (CONTINUING OPERATIONS) BY
PRINCIPAL BUSINESS SEGMENT FOR 2013

BN B R E M8y
Personal computer
products distribution

(49%)
BT BT
Electronic components
distribution (37 %)
BFEXANEERS

Contract electronic
manufacturing services (14%)

“E-CHEERMWESD 2EXF(FRELE)
TURNOVER (CONTINUING OPERATIONS) BY
GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENT FOR 2013

B

Europe (14%)
BB
Hong Kong (24%)

JbEM

North America

(49%)

BB

Mainland China (13%) R — FRALE

Turnover — continuing

operations
—ZE—= —_ET—=
2013 2012
F#ET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
(&B%)
(restated)
B FIT R A H Electronic components distribution 201,014 210,575
BFEESNEERY Contract electronic manufacturing services 78,280 157,571
&N % B m A 8 Personal computer products distribution 268,622 274,870
547,916 643,016
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Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) is committed to maintain
good corporate governance standard and procedures to ensure the integrity,
transparency and quality of disclosure in order to enhance the shareholders’
value.

The Company has adopted the principles and complied with all the applicable
code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) as set out
in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) for the year ended
31 March 2013, save for the deviations discussed below. The Board will
continuously review and improve the corporate governance practices and
standards of the Company to ensure that business activities and decision making
processes are regulated in a proper and prudent manner.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTION

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its
own code of conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions (the “Model
Code”).
directors of the Company have confirmed that they have fully complied with the

Having made specific enquiry of all directors of the Company, the

required standard as set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31
March 2013.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board focuses on overall strategies and policies with particular attention paid
to the growth and financial performance of the Group. The principal functions of
the Board are to:

(1) establish the strategic direction and development of the Group;

(2) determine the broad policies, strategic plans and performance objectives
of the Group;

3) monitor management performance;

(4) approve financial plans and annual budgets, major funding proposals,
key funding and investment proposals;

(5) oversee the processes for evaluating the adequacy of internal controls,
risk management, financial reporting and compliance; and

(6) assume responsibility for corporate governance.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The Board is collectively responsible for the leadership, control and overall
strategic development of the Group, as well as overseeing internal control,
financial performance, overall management and operations of the Group. The
Board has delegated day-to-day operations to management, who is responsible
for implementing the Group’s business strategies and managing the daily
business operations.

The Board comprises four executive directors and three independent non-
executive directors.

Regular Board meetings are held at least four times a year to approve annual
and interim results, and to review the business operation and the internal control
system of the Group. Apart from these regular meetings, Board meetings are
also held to approve major or special issues.

Seven Board meetings were held during the year ended 31 March 2013.

The Company has received from each independent non-executive director an
annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers that all of the independent non-executive directors are
independent.

Given the nature and business objectives of the Company, the Board has a
balance of skill and experience appropriate for the requirements of the business
of the Company. List of directors and their biographical details are set out on
pages 25 to 27.

REMUNERATION PAID TO MEMBERS OF KEY
MANAGEMENT

Details of remuneration paid to members of key management (including all
Directors and senior management as disclosed in section headed “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” of this report) for the year ended
31 March 2013 fell within the following bands:

A
Number of individual
2013 2012
- 1
HK$2,000,001 — HK$3,000,000 2 1
HK$1,000,001 — HK$2,000,000 - 2
6 3
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Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited

DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS

Members of the Board, number of Board meetings held and the attendance of

each member during the year are set out as follows:

Members of the Board

Executive directors
Mr. LAU Tak Wan (President)
Ms. CHAN Yuen Mei, Pinky (Vice-president)
Mr. WAN Chor Fai
Mr. CHEUNG Wai Ho
(appointed on 27 March 2013)
Mr. MAK Hon Kai, Stanly
(resigned on 27 March 2013)

Independent non-executive directors
Mr. Barry John BUTTIFANT

Mr. CHOI Yuk Fan

Dr. LIU Ngai Wing

BOARD MEETINGS

BE-Z-—=FZA=+—HLEFE
HE S BTHEBRRH
Meeting attended/held during
the year ended 31 March 2013

EEg
Board

7/7
7/7
7/7

0/0

6/7

7/7

777
7/7

BRXE
General
Meeting

1/1
11
1/1

0/0

1/1

1/1

11
1/1

The executive directors meet on a regular basis to discuss the ordinary business

of the Company. Board meetings are held to discuss the overall development,

operation, financial performance, interim results, annual results and other

business of the Company that requires approval from the Board. Reasonable

notice has been given to Board members to give them an opportunity to attend.

All Board members are provided with relevant documentation covering the

subject matter of the board meetings. Board members are also provided with

sufficient information in a timely manner to review and consider matters to be

discussed at Board meetings. The Company utilizes telephone conferencing for

Directors who are not able to attend in person.
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BOARD MEETINGS (continueq)

During the Year, all Directors discharged their duties in a dedicated, diligent and
proactive manner with reasonable prudence. They have executed their duties
in accordance with statutory requirements, the Company’s Bye-laws (the “Bye-
laws”) and the Listing Rules. All Directors have exercised due care in monitoring
corporate matters of the Company and provided sufficient time and attention to
all significant issues of Group.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under the Code provision A.2.1, the roles of the chairman and chief executive

officer should be separated and should not be performed by the same individual.

Mr. LAU Tak Wan is the Chairman of the Board and the president of the
Company. In the opinion of the Board, the role of the president and the chief
executive officer is the same. The Board considers that the present structure
provides the Group with strong and consistent leadership and allows for efficient
and effective business planning and execution. Hence, the Board believes that it
is in the best interest of the shareholders of the Company that Mr. LAU Tak Wan
will continue to assume the roles of the Chairman of the Board and the president
of the Company. However, the Company will review the current structure as and
when it becomes appropriate in future.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The independent non-executive directors bring independent judgment to the
Board. Each independent non-executive director sent a written confirmation of
their independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules to the Company.
Based on these confirmations, the Board considers that all independent non-
executive directors have met the qualifications of Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules

for the Year.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Directors are appointed in accordance with their qualifications and experience
to ensure they are capable to perform their duties and protect the interests of
the stakeholders. Every newly appointed director receives a comprehensive and
formal introduction to ensure that he/she has an understanding of the Group’s
business and operation, his/her responsibilities and obligations under the Listing

Rules and relevant regulatory requirements, and the Model Code.
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Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS (continued)

Under the Code provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive directors shall be
appointed for a specific term and be subject to re-election. The independent
non-executive directors of the Company have not appointed for a specific term
of office, which constitutes a deviation from A.4.1 of the Code. However, all
independent non-executive directors are subject to retirement by rotation at the
Annual General Meeting of the Company in accordance with the Company’s

Bye-laws.

According to the provisions of the Company’s Bye-laws and the Listing Rules,
any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office
until the next following general meeting of the Company, and in the case of an
addition to the existing Board, until the next following Annual General Meeting
of the Company. Furthermore, each Director, including those appointed for
a specific term or holding office as Chairman and/or Managing Director, are

subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The Company
would provide a comprehensive induction package covering the summary of
the responsibilities and legal obligations of a director of a Hong Kong listed
company, the Company’s constitutional documents and the Guides on Directors’
Duties issued by the Companies Registry to each newly appointed Director to
ensure that he/she is sufficiently aware of his/her responsibilities and obligations
under the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.

Directors are continually updated on developments in the statutory and
regulatory regime and the business environment to facilitate the discharge of
their responsibilities. Continuing briefings and professional development to
Directors would be arranged whenever necessary.

During the year, all directors and Company Secretary confirmed that they have
complied with the code.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making recommendations to
the Board on, among other things, the Company’s policy and structure for the
remuneration of all directors and senior management of the Company and is
delegated by the Board with the responsibility to determine on behalf of the
Board the specific remuneration packages for all Executive directors and senior

management of the Company.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)

Members of Remuneration Committee:

HEEERE
ZEEEENRY
No. of Meeting Attended/
No. of Meeting

Independent non-executive directors
Dr. LIU Ngai Wing (Chairman) 2/2
Mr. CHOI Yuk Fan 2/2

Executive director
Mr. LAU Tak Wan 2/2

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee are to:

O

review the structure, size and composition of the Board (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) on a regular basis and make

recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed changes;

identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and
select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection of,

individuals nominated for directorships;

assess the independence of independent non-executive Directors;

make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors in particular the chairman and the president (chief executive);

and

where the Board proposes a resolution to elect an individual as
an independent non-executive Director at the general meeting, the
Nomination Committee should set out in the circular to shareholders
and/or explanatory statement accompanying the notice of the relevant
general meeting why they believe the individual should be elected and

the reasons why they consider the individual to be independent.
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Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

HEERRE

ZEEEBINRY

No. of Meeting Attended/

Members of Nomination Committee: No. of Meeting
Executive director

Mr. LAU Tak Wan (Chairman) 2/2

Independent non-executive directors
Mr. Barry John BUTTIFANT 2/2
Mr. CHOI Yuk Fan 2/2

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established with a specific written terms of reference.

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing and supervising the financial
reporting process and internal control system of the Group and providing advice

and recommendations to the Board.

Audit Committee is also authorised to obtain outside legal or other independent
professional advice and to secure the attendance of outsiders with relevant

experience and expertise if it considers this necessary.

Two Audit Committee meetings were held during the year ended 31 March 2013.

Members of the Audit Committee, number of Audit Committee meetings held

and the attendance of each member during the year are set out as follows:

HEEERE

EREESERNRH

No. of meetings

attended/No. of

Audit Committee

Members of the Audit Committee meetings held

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Barry John BUTTIFANT (Chairman) 2/2
Mr. CHOI Yuk Fan 2/2
Dr. LIU Ngai Wing 2/2
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

During the year, the Audit Committee has performed the following duties:

O

reviewed the annual financial statements with the auditor and reviewed
the unaudited interim financial statements, with recommendations to the

Board for approval;

reviewed the changes in accounting standards and policies as well as

assessment of potential impacts on the Group’s financial statements;

reviewed the Group’s internal control system and discussed the relevant
issues including financial, operational and compliance controls, and risk

management functions;

reviewed the compliance issues with the regulatory and statutory

requirements;

considered and recommended the appointment, re-appointment and

approved the remuneration and terms of engagement of external auditor;

discussed with external auditor the nature and scope of the audit and

reporting obligations; and

reviewed and monitored external auditor’s independence and objectivity
and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with applicable

standards.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of the

financial statements of the Group and ensure that the financial statements

are in accordance with statutory and regulatory requirements and applicable

accounting standards. The Board also ensure the timely publication of the

financial statements of the Group.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year, PricewaterhouseCoopers, the external auditor of the Company,
provided the following services to the Group and their respective fees charged
are set out as follows:

WE 2 & A

Type of services Fees charged
FET

HK$’000

Audit services for the Group 2,500
Taxation services 118
Total 2,618

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The directors of the Company acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation
of the financial statements of the Group for the relevant accounting periods in
accordance with statutory and regulatory requirements. In preparing the financial
statements for the six months ended 30 September 2012 and for the year ended
31 March 2013, the directors have adopted appropriate accounting policies and
applied them consistently. The financial statements for the reporting year have
been prepared on a going concern basis.

A statement by the auditor about their reporting responsibilities is set out on
pages 36 to 37 in the annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for the Group’s system of internal controls and is
committed to managing business risks and maintaining a sound and effective
internal control system to safeguard the shareholders’ investment and the
Group’s assets. The effectiveness of the internal control system was also

discussed on a semi-annual basis with the Audit Committee.

The Group’s internal control system encompasses its policies, processes, tasks,
and other aspects of the Group that taken together:

(1) to facilitate its effective and efficient operation by allowing it to respond

appropriately to significant business, operational, financial, compliance
and other risks with a view of achieving business objectives. This
includes the safeguarding of assets from inappropriate use or from loss

and fraud and ensuring that liabilities are identified and managed;
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INTERNAL CONTROLS (continued)

(2) to help ensure maintenance of proper accounting records for the
provision of reliable financial information for internal or external reporting;

and

(3) to help ensure compliance with relevant legislation and regulations, and

also with internal policies with respect to the conduct of business.

The internal control system is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance of no material mis-statement or loss and to manage rather than
eliminate risks of failure in operational systems and achievement of the Group’s

objectives.
SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Shareholders’ Enquiries

Shareholders are encouraged to maintain direct communication with the
Company. Shareholders who have any questions for the Board may write directly
to the Company Secretary at the Company’s Hong Kong principal place of
business, 11th Floor, Block G, East Sun Industrial Centre, 16 Shing Yip Street,
Kowloon, Hong Kong, or they may send emails to daiwa@daiwahk.com. The

Company Secretary will direct the questions to the Board.

Any questions regarding the shareholdings of the shareholders can be addressed
directly to the Company’s branch registrar, Tricor Abacus Limited at 26/F,
Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

Shareholders’ Meetings

Shareholders are encouraged to participate in general meetings or to appoint

proxies to attend and vote at meetings if they are unable to attend the meetings.

The process of the Company’s general meeting will be monitored and reviewed
on a regular basis, and, if necessary, changes will be made to ensure that

shareholders’ needs are best served.

Board members, in particular, either the chairman of Board committees or their
delegates, appropriate management executives and external auditors will attend

AGMs to answer shareholders’ questions.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Shareholders’ Meetings (continued)

Should shareholders wish to call a special general meeting, it must be convened
according to the Company’s Bye-laws. In summary:

(a) Any 2 or more shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company can, in writing to the Board, request a special
general meeting to be called by the Board to transact any business
specified in such request.

(b) The signed written request, which should specify the purpose of
the meeting, should be delivered to the Company’s principal place
of business in Hong Kong. If the Board fails to proceed to convene
such meeting within twenty-one days after receiving the request, the
shareholders themselves may do so in accordance with the provisions of
Section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company communicates to its shareholders through announcements and
annual and interim reports published in its website http://www.daiwa.com.hk/
news.phtml. Shareholders may put enquiries to the Board in writing sent to
the principal office of the Company at 11th Floor, Block G, East Sun Industrial
Central, 16 Shing Yip Street, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The directors,
Company Secretary or other appropriate members of senior management
respond to enquiries from shareholders promptly. All shareholders are also
encouraged to attend general meetings of the Company to discuss matters
relating to the Group. At general meetings of the Company, the Directors answer
questions from the shareholders.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Constitutional Documents

There was no significant change to the Company’s Memorandum of Association
and Bye-laws (“Constitutional Documents”) during the year ended 31 March
2018. A latest version of the Constitutional Documents can be downloaded from
the websites of the Company or the Stock Exchange.

On behalf of the Board
LAU Tak Wan

President

Hong Kong, 22 July 2013
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The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in the electronic components distribution, contract electronic
manufacturing services, and distribution of personal computer products.
During the year, the Group abandoned its operations in the manufacturing of
consumer electronics, and disposed of a major portion of electronic components
distributions. These constitute discontinued operations and further details of

which are set out in notes 5 and 34 of the financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and contribution to operating profit by

reportable segments for the year is set out in note 5 to the financial statements.
RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated income

statement on page 38.

The Board of Directors did not recommend payment of final dividend in respect
of the year ended 31 March 2013. No interim dividend was declared or paid for
the year ended 31 March 2013.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2013 are set out

in note 37 to the financial statements.
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group are set

out in note 17 to the financial statements.
SHARE CAPITAL

Details of share capital of the Company are set out in note 31 to the financial

statements.
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RESERVES

The amounts and particulars of material transfers to and from reserves during
the year are set out in note 32 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 March 2013, the Company does not have reserve available for distribution.
As at 31 March 2012, reserves of the Company available for distribution
amounted to HK$106,812,000, including contributed surplus of HK$72,309,000.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, contributed surplus is distributable
to shareholders, subject to the condition that the Company cannot declare or
pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if (i) it is, or
after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become due, or (ii) the
realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its
liabilities and its issued share capital and share premium account.

DONATIONS

The Group made charitable donations of HK$10,000 (2012: HK$211,500) during
the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s bye-laws and
there was no restriction against such right under the laws in Bermuda, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the consolidated results, assets and liabilities of the Group for
each of the last five years until 31 March 2013 is set out on pages 9 to 11.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2013, sales to the five largest customers of the
Group in total accounted for approximately 22% of the Group’s total turnover,
with the largest customer accounted for about 9%. The five largest suppliers
of the Group together in total accounted for approximately 70% by value of the
Group’s total purchases during the year, with the largest supplier accounted for
about 37%.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the company’s share capital)

had an interest in the major suppliers or customers noted above.
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DIRECTORS

The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive directors

Mr. LAU Tak Wan (President)

Ms. CHAN Yuen Mei, Pinky (Vice-president)

Mr. WAN Chor Fai

Mr. CHEUNG Wai Ho (appointed on 27 March 2013)
Mr. MAK Hon Kai, Stanly (resigned on 27 March 2013)

Independent non-executive directors
Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT

Mr. CHOI Yuk Fan

Dr. LIU Ngai Wing

Dr. Liu Ngai Wing and Mr. Choi Yuk Fan retire by rotation in accordance with
clause 99 of the Company’s bye-laws and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election.

Mr. Cheung Wai Ho retire by rotation at the annual general meeting in
accordance with clause 91 of the Company’s bye-laws applicable to newly-
appointed directors, being eligible, offer himself for re-election.

The terms of office of the directors, including the independent non-executive
directors, are subject to retirement by rotation and are eligible for re-election at
the Company’s annual general meeting in accordance with the Company’s bye-
laws.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive directors

Mr. LAU Tak Wan, aged 63, is the founder and the President of the Group. Mr.
Lau graduated from Hong Kong Baptist College (now known as Hong Kong
Baptist University) in Sociology and has more than 30 years’ management
and production experience in the electronics industry. Prior to founding the
Group, Mr. Lau had over 6 years’ experience in running his own business in
the electronics industry. He is responsible for the overall corporate planning,
strategic development and marketing of the Group.

Ms. CHAN Yuen Mei, Pinky, aged 56, is the spouse of Mr. LAU Tak Wan.
Ms. Chan is the Vice-president of the Group. Also she is the Director of
Administration and Finance responsible for administration, human resources and
finance of the Group. Prior to joining the Group in 1998, Ms. Chan has over 20
years of experience in accounting and financial management and at the same
time running her own business for more than 10 years.

Mr. WAN Chor Fai, aged 55, is the CEO (Manufacturing) of the Group. Mr.
Wan graduated from Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University) in Production and Industrial Engineering and is
responsible for the business development and manufacturing management of the
Group. He has more than 20 years’ experience in manufacturing and marketing.
Prior to joining the Group in 1987, he worked for an international conglomerate
and was in charge of the electronics division.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Executive directors (continued)

Mr. CHEUNG Wai Ho, aged 52, is appointed as the Director of distribution of the
Group and is responsible for the Group’s overall sales and marketing strategy
and the distribution of electronics components. Mr. Cheung joined the Group
since 1982 and has more than 30 years of experience in the field of electronic
components distribution in Hong Kong, China and North America. Mr. Cheung
was the pioneer of the Group to start the distribution of electronic components
in major cities in China since early 80’s and has established sales offices in
Guangzhou, Shenzhen, Beijing, Shanghai and Chengdu.

Mr. MAK Hon Kai, Stanly, aged 51, was resigned from the CEO (Distribution)
at 27 March 2013. Before his resignation, he was responsible for the Group’s
overall marketing strategy and the distribution of electronic components. Mr.
Mak joined the Group in 1988. He has more than 20 years’ experience in the
sales and marketing of electronic components.

Independent non-executive directors

Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT, aged 68, is an independent non-executive Director
appointed by the Group in 1994. Dr. Buttifant is currently an executive director
of Hsin Chong Construction Group (“HCCG”), an independent non-executive
director of Giordano International Limited, and a non-executive director of
Synergis Holdings Limited (“Synergis”), all of which are publicly listed companies
in Hong Kong. Dr. Buttifant also serves as a non-executive director of Global-
Tech Advanced Innovations Inc. (formerly known as Global-Tech Appliances,
Inc.), a NASDAQ company and China Nepstar Chain Drugstore Limited, a
NYSE listed public company. Dr. Buttifant rejoined IDT International Limited
as a Chief Executive Officer in July 2010. In October 2009, Dr. Buttifant was a
director — corporate finance of Mission Hills Group (“MHG”) and prior to this
appointment, he was the consultant to the Group since December 2008. Prior to
joining MHG, Dr. Buttifant served as a principal of KLC Kennic Lui & Company,
a professional accounting firm, and managing director of KLC Transactions
Limited. Prior to joining KLC, Dr. Buttifant was the executive director — finance
of MHG. In December 2004, Dr. Buttifant was the managing director of Hsin
Chong International Holdings Limited, a controlling shareholder of HCCG (which
was acquired by MHG in November 2007) and Synergis (which was acquired
by HCCG in September 2008). Dr. Buttifant was an alternate director to both
public companies. Dr. Buttifant was an operating partner of Baring Private Equity
Asia Limited. He was also the managing director of Wo Kee Hong (Holdings)
Limited (“Wo Kee Hong”) from 2001 to 2002 and was the Advisor to the board
of directors of Wo Kee Hong from 2002 to 2004. Prior to joining Wo Kee Hong,
he was the managing director of IDT International Limited for over 8 years
and had worked for Polly Peck Group and Sime Darby Hong Kong Limited for
more than 11 years in the capacity of finance director and managing director.
He has over 34 years of experience in corporate and financial management in
HK. Dr. Buttifant is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants; the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants; the
Chartered Management Institute; the Hong Kong Management Association and
the Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Dr. Buttifant, being a person distinguished
in eminence and by attainments, was admitted to the degree of Honorary
Doctorate of Business Administration (Honoris Causa) by Edinburgh Napier
University, United Kingdom, in February 2013.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Independent non-executive directors (continued)

Dr. LIU Ngai Wing, aged 62, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company in September 2004. Dr. Liu holds a PhD Degree in
Hotel and Tourism Management from the Hotel and Tourism Management
School of the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2008, a Master of Arts degree
in China Studies from the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology in
2011, a Master of Science degree in Global Business from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong in 2002, a Master of Science Degree in Hotel and Tourism
Management from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2001 and a Master
Degree in Business Administration from the Open University of Hong Kong in
1999. He is also an Associate Member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a Fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
From 10 September 2010, Dr. Liu is an independent non-executive director of
Dorsett Hospitality International Limited (formerly known as Kosmopolito Hotels

International Limited), which is public listed company in Hong Kong.

Mr. CHOI Yuk Fan, aged 60, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company in September 2004. Mr. Choi was awarded Bachelor
of Laws Degree (LLB) by University of London in 1988 and Post-graduate
Certificate in Laws (PCLL) by University of Hong Kong in 1991. Mr Choi is
the sole proprietor of Messrs. Choi & Associates. Mr. Choi was admitted as a
Solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong in 1993 and a Solicitor of the Supreme
Court of England and Wales in 1994.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive directors has entered into a service contract with the
Company and these service contracts will continue thereafter until terminated by

either party for not less than three or six months’ prior written notice.

None of the directors who are proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which cannot be
terminated by the Company within one year without payment of compensation,

other than statutory compensation.
DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Apart from the directors’ service contracts noted above and the connected
transactions noted as below, no other contracts of significance in relation to the
Group’s business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
and in which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly

or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

At 31 March 2013, the interests and short positions of the Directors and chief
executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) which were required,
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which they are taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions
of the SFO), to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, or which
were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
kept by the Company, or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers in the Listing Rules, to be

notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange were as follows:

(a) RAATIEREEOIOEBTZRINERE (a) Long position in the Company’s shares of HK$0.10 each
BRILER TEIR
Pt B AR 6 2 B B
Number of issued ordinary shares/
underlying shares attached to derivatives
ERTEER
Ordinary shares in issue
BARER FEER HitiiE s my

EENE Personal Mt Corporate = Other Total BAtk
Name of directors interests Notes interests Notes interests interests Percentage
AEEEE

Mr. LAU Tak Wan 8,196,426 1 210,096,536 283 1,428,597 219,721,529 55.73%
R+

Ms. CHAN Yuen Mei, Pinky 4,571,426 1 210,096,536 283 5,053,567 219,721,529 55.73%
FRBEE

Mr. WAN Chor Fai 62,500 — — 62,500 0.016%
ERAEL

Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT 125,000 — — 125,000 0.032%
RERTE

Mr. CHEUNG Wai Ho 57,033 — — 57,033 0.014%

29 aRNEmEERAER QA

Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited



Ht
T8>
%H,
Dff
i

Report of the Directors

BEERBRESTHRAERAQAHEM
EBRBLIE 2B - HBERO R EE
BeERRKB®)

(a) RAEAQTESREEOI0BTZRIDEFRA(E)

Mt -

1. BrERRLT (Bl EZRB)BEEAR
A AR 8,625,000 f% ©

2. China Capital Holdings Investment Ltd
([China Capital]) B = # B & 2 7 IR 7
133,948,541 1% ° China Capitalz B 7 2
ANTEBETRAHIEEEEG  HRTEDZ
B BTRANER L TR ©

3. Leading Trade Ltd ([ Leading Trade|) & #= #

BARRNFRAD 76,147,995 % ° Leading Trade
BAZETESRITRAHACEHES - 8T
BAZATEBEITRAHMRLZTES -

aNEEERAERAA 30
Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION (continued)

(a) Long position in the Company’s shares of HK$0.10 each (continued)

Notes:

1. 3,625,000 shares in the Company were jointly held by Mr. Lau and Ms.
Chan (the spouse of Mr. Lau).

2. 138,948,541 shares in the Company were beneficially owned by China
Capital Holdings Investment Ltd (“China Capital”). The issued share capital
of China Capital is 60% owned by Mr. Lau, and 40% owned by Ms. Chan.

3. 76,147,995 shares in the Company were beneficially owned by Leading
Trade Ltd (“Leading Trade”). The issued share capital of Leading Trade is
50% owned by Mr. Lau and 50% owned by Ms. Chan.
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EFTERBERAF

Cosmos Wires and Connectors Manufacturing Limited

Westpac Digital Limited

FEREFEARANTF
Vastpoint Industrial Limited

ANEERERAA
Daiwa Associate (H.K.) Limited

BN - BIEERREZ DRI BRBERTIRE
IXRBRARZELRER TR 140,000 &
%.10,000 f% -
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION (continued)

(b) Shares of associated corporations of the company

Dominion International Limited, which is 50% owned by Mr. Lau, and
50% owned by Ms. Chan:

FEZERERELZRDEBE
Number of non-voting

deferred shares held

50,000

455,000

1,500,000

In addition, each of Mr. Lau and Ms. Chan beneficially owns 140,000 and
10,000 non-voting deferred shares respectively in Cosmotec Precision

Industrial Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2013, none of the Directors, chief
executives of the Company or their associates had any interests or short
positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
were required, pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they are taken or deemed to have taken
under such provisions of the SFO), to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange, or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register kept by the Company, or which were required, pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers in
the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed

during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

A subsidiary of the Group, Daiwa Distribution (Ontario) Inc., had entered into a
rental agreement in respect of office space in Canada on 1 June 2006 with a
company jointly owned by Mr. Lau Tak Wan and Ms. Chan Yuen Mei, Pinky for
the period from 1 June 2011 to 31 May 2014. Monthly rental paid for the office
premises is CAD14,627.74 (approximately HK$113,000).

The above constituted a connected transaction under the Listing Rules. The
Directors are of the opinion that the above transaction was entered into on
normal commercial terms and on an arm'’s length basis; was fair and reasonable

so far as the shareholders of the Company, taken as a whole, are concerned.

The above connected transaction constituted an exempted connected

transaction under the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor its subsidiaries had entered
into any connected transactions discloseable by the Company under the Listing

Rules during the year.
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Leading Trade Limited
China Capital Holdings Investment Limited
RIEERE

Mr. Ng Hung Sang
REBZ T (RBELEZERE)

Ms. Ng Lai King, Pamela (spouse of Mr. Ng Hung Sang)

1. Leading Trade Limited 2 50% # &5 /& 2115 18 & £ AT
BB NBO% R ARGk TF#EA - Bt R
BELEEER - Leading Trade Limited + 254 K
BR 22 & 359 % 18 7 ¥ 5 74,167,995 » 219,721,529 &
219,721,529 IRA QA RIR D 2 12 ©

2. China Capital Holdings Investment Limited Z 60%

HHRBGELENMERRIO%ER BRI RZ T
FiER - AL - RIEFEH LIS KD - China Capital
Holdings Investment Limited + 21754 & B& 22 £ 5 Rll4#
13 A% A 133,948,541 ~ 219,721,529 £ 219,721,529
ARA R EIIRAD 2 #E 2R o

ﬁ’%J:LTBZE%’;\\ CTRIE-—Z=ZF=ZA=+—H  ARQREX
EBAEABEARBDETRAS% HIA EAB L
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2013, to the best knowledge of the Directors, the following
parties (other than Directors or chief executives of the Company), had an interest
or short position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
which are required to be disclosed to the Company under the provision of
Divisions 2 and 3 and Part XV of the SFO, or, who was, directly or indirectly,
interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital
carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any other
member of the Group.

Interests in the shares of the Company

HEBRITRG
BERGHAE BEHEI
BiiE Number of % of the total
Note shares held issued shares
74,167,995 19.31%
2 133,948,541 33.98%
76,664,698 19.45%
76,664,698 19.45%
Notes:
1. Leading Trade Limited is 50% owned by Mr. LAU Tak Wan and 50% owned by
Ms. CHAN Yuen Mei, Pinky. Accordingly, Leading Trade Limited, Mr. Lau and
Ms. Chan were deemed by SFO to be interested in 74,167,995, 219,721,529 and
219,721,529 shares of the Company.
2. China Capital Holdings Investment Limited is 60% owned by Mr. LAU Tak Wan and

40% owned by Ms. CHAN Yuen Mei, Pinky. Accordingly, China Capital Holdings
Investment Limited, Mr. Lau and Ms. Chan were deemed by SFO to be interested in
138,948,541, 219,721,529 and 219,721,529 shares of the Company respectively.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of any other
interest representing 5% or more of the issued share capital of the Company and
recorded in the register of Substantial Shareholders maintained under Section
336 of the SFO as at 31 March 2013.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a sufficient public float

throughout the year under review.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in the

Corporate Governance Report on pages 12 to 22.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each independent non-executive director an
annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers that all of the independent non-executive

directors are independent.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The written terms of reference which describe the authority and duties of the
Audit Committee were prepared and adopted with reference to “A Guide for
Effective Audit Committees” published by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Audit Committee provides an important link between the
Board and the Company’s auditor in matters coming within the scope of the
group audit. It also reviews the effectiveness of internal audit, internal controls
and risk evaluation. The Committee comprises three independent non-executive
directors, namely Mr. Barry John BUTTIFANT, Mr. CHOI Yuk Fan and Dr. LIU
Ngai Wing. Two meetings were held during the current financial year.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2013, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold and redeemed any of the Company’s listed

securities during the year ended 31 March 2013.
AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who

retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board
LAU Tak Wan
President

Hong Kong, 22 July 2013
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TO THE SHAREHOLERS OF DAIWA ASSOCIATE HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Daiwa Associate
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set
out on pages 38 to 140, which comprise the consolidated and company balance
sheets as at 31 March 2013, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F, Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 March 2013, and
of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 22 July 2013
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Hizt
Note
Continuing operations
Revenue )
Cost of sales 8
Gross profit
Other income 6
Other gains, net 7
Provision for impairment of property, plant and
equipment
Net gain on disposal of land use rights, and
property, plant and equipment
Selling and distribution expenses 8
General and administrative expenses 8
Operating profit
Finance income 10
Finance costs 10
Profit before income tax
Income tax expense 11
Profit for the year from continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Loss for the year from discontinued operations 34
(Loss)/profit for the year
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company
— continuing operations
— discontinued operations
Non-controlling interests — discontinued
operations
(Loss)/earnings per share for (loss)/profit
attributable to equity holders of the
Company during the year
Basic and diluted 15

Continuing operations
Discontinued operations

statements.

For the year ended 31 March 2013

—E—= —ZET—=
2013 2012
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$’000
(E31)
(Restated)
547,916 643,016
(479,197) (572,548)
68,719 70,468
875 388
866 842
(6,756) -
17,529 41,941
(10,224) (9,921)
(54,299) (59,311)
16,710 44,407
854 752
(1,732) (1,368)
15,832 43,791
(1,928) (1,966)
13,904 41,825
(184,646) (33,064)
(170,742) 8,761
13,904 41,825
(184,912) (33,039)
(171,008) 8,786
266 (25)
(170,742) 8,761

HK3.81 cents &1l
HK(50.64) cents 1|l

HK12.60 cents &l
HK(9.95) cents 7l

The notes on pages 45 to 140 are an integral part of these consolidated financial
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Comprehensive (loss)/income:

(Loss)/profit for the year

Other comprehensive (loss)/income:

Currency translation differences

Release of exchange reserve upon disposal of
subsidiaries

Available-for-sale financial assets:
— Impairment during the year
— Fair value gain/(loss) during the year
Other comprehensive loss for the year
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year
Total comprehensive (loss)/income attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company

— continuing operations
— discontinued operations

Non-controlling interests — discontinued
operations

statements.

For the year ended 31 March 2013

—E—= T
2013 2012
FETT FET
HK$°000 HK$’000
(Restated)
(170,742) 8,761
(1,938) (1,806)
(8,403) =
225 —
377 (935)
(9,739) (2,741)
(180,481) 6,020
12,568 39,084
(193,315) (33,039)
(180,747) 6,045
266 (25)
(180,481) 6,020

The notes on pages 45 to 140 are an integral part of these consolidated financial
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Non-current assets
Goodwill
Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties
Land use rights
Other intangible assets

Prepayments and rental deposits

Deferred income tax assets

Available-for-sale financial assets

Current assets
Inventories
Trade and notes receivables

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Equity

Capital and reserves attributable to equity

holders of the Company
Share capital
Share premium
(Deficits)/reserves
Non-controlling interests
Total equity
Non-current liabilities

Deferred income tax liabilities
Borrowings

Current liabilities
Borrowings
Trade payables
Accruals and other payables
Tax payable

Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilities

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

LAU Tak Wan
President

Htat
Note
16
18
19
20
25

22

23
24

26

31
32

30
27

27
28

As at 31 March 2013

—E—= —F—=
2013 2012
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
28,201 28,781
76,500 149,994
35,364 —
9,648 10,574
710 2,959
363 621

= 514
15,136 14,759
165,922 208,202
98,031 261,986
95,198 207,509
19,287 34,372
60,160 105,444
272,676 609,311
438,598 817,513
39,424 31,539
225,514 218,476
(52,247) 128,500
212,691 378,515
215 (51)
212,906 378,464
253 1,652

321 7,461
574 9,118
113,947 259,184
65,425 143,380
44,256 25,903
1,490 1,469
225,118 429,936
225,692 439,049
438,598 817,513
47,558 179,375
213,480 387,577

CHAN Yuen Mei, Pinky
Vice-President

The notes on pages 45 to 140 are an integral part of these consolidated financial
statements.
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Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiaries

Amounts due from subsidiaries

Current assets
Prepayments
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Equity

Capital and reserves attributable to equity

holders of the Company
Share capital

Share premium
(Deficits)/reserves

Total equity

Current liabilities
Accruals and other payables

Total equity and liabilities

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

LAU Tak Wan
President

i3
Note

37

37,38(b)

25
26

31

32(b)

29

—E—=

As at 31 March 2013

= —

2013 2012
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$’000
44,715 44,715
128,886 313,468
173,601 358,183
157 161

166 81

323 242
173,924 358,425
39,424 31,539
225,514 218,476
(91,309) 108,214
173,629 358,229
295 196

295 196
173,924 358,425
28 46
173,629 358,229

CHAN Yuen Mei, Pinky
Vice-President

The notes on pages 45 to 140 are an integral part of these consolidated financial
statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BE—F—=F=HA=+—HIFFE

R-Z--50A—H At 1 April 2012

SRAFR Comprehensive loss:
(Loss)/profit for the year

FE(ER),/EH

Hv44 (B5#8) Wi Other comprehensive

(loss)/income:

HEKNTB AR LIRS Release of exchange
R reserve upon disposal of
subsidiaries
RN ESREERE Impairment of available-for-
BE sale financial assets
IR R Currency translation
differences
At ESREE Fair value gains on available-
REER S for-sale financial assets
HinfraEiaesE Total other comprehensive
loss
SRAB(ER) W& Total comprehensive
(loss)/income
HERBEENRS Transaction with owners:
BATHARFAR (D Issue of shares by rights issue
(K17#31) (Note 31)
R-ZBE—=%§ At 31 March 2013
=ZA=t+-

R4 BEE 140 EZMEERAE Rk 2 e
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For the year ended 31 March 2013

DAERFEAERN
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
FREEFIE
3] R
R EE /(E18) Non- ERBHE
Share  Reserves/ #%  controlling Total
premium (deficits) Total interests equity
FAET FET FET FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
(et 32)
(Note 32)
218,476 128,500 378,515 (51) 378,464
— (171,008) (171,008) 266 (170,742)
— (8,403) (8,403) — (8,403)
— 225 225 — 225
— (1,938) (1,938) — (1,938)
— 377 377 — 377
— (9,739) (9,739) — (9,739)
— (180,747) (180,747) 266 (180,481)
7,038 — 14,923 — 14,923
225,514 (52,247) 212,691 215 212,906

The notes on pages 45 to 140 are an integral part of these consolidated financial



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

SUER BB

HE—F—=F=FH=+—HIFEF

For the year ended 31 March 2013

DRAEREE AEN
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
FEHERHIE
g
(&S B4 = E Non- REEBE
Share Share s #%  controlling Total
capital premium Reserves Total interests equity
FAET FET FAET FAET FET FAET
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$'000
(Hiz£31) (Hi7£32)
(Note 31) (Note 32)
R-E——FMWA—H At 1 April 2011 30,394 215,042 125,609 371,045 (26) 371,019
Ralkas Comprehensive income:
FERHN,/(BE) Profit/(loss) for the year - - 8,786 8,786 (25) 8,761
HinfraEE - Other comprehensive loss:
SN EETE Currency translation differences - - (1,806) (1,806) - (1,806)
AHESHEE Fair value losses on available-
RTEEE for-sale financial assets - - (935) (935) - (935)
HthiRaBiBesE Total other comprehensive
loss - . (2,741) (2,741) - (2,741)
RERREEE Total comprehensive income - - 6,045 6,045 (25) 6,020
HERBEENRS Transactions with owners:
IR METT Issue of shares upon exercise
il of warrants 1,145 3,434 - 4,579 — 4,579
) Dividends - - (3,154) (3,154) - (3,154)
BEREZEEENXZAE Total transactions with owners 1,145 3,434 (3,154) 1,425 — 1,425
R-FE—=F At 31 March 2012
=A=+—8H 31,539 218,476 128,500 378,515 (61) 378,464

R4 BE 140 A Z MRS I I5RER 2 gD -

The notes on pages 45 to 140 are an integral part of these consolidated financial
statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BE T =—F=-A=+—HIEEF For the year ended 31 March 2013
—E—= T
2013 2012
HtaF FET FET
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
RETEZHERE Cash flows from operating activities
KEEBMACRE Cash used in operations 33(a) (66,165) (26,143)
SAALE Interest paid (5,319) (6,860)
WER AL Interest received 880 796
B TS ER Income tax paid (3,215) (6,488)
KETEEFMA 2 FRE Net cash used in operating activities (73,819) (38,695)
REZHZHESRE Cash flows from investing activities
BEYZ R Purchases of property, plant and equipment (3,256) (21,230)
BEAHLECREE Purchases of available-for-sale financial
assets - (15,307)
HELHERRE % HER Proceeds from disposal of land use rights,
REFTS R and property, plant and equipment 33(b) 22,073 88,688
HEHB R RS FE Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries, net 34 4,995 -
KREEHEE2FHRE Net cash generated from investing activities 23,812 52,151
REITBZHEESRE Cash flows from financing activities
BIIRGD FTIS SRIBF 58 Net proceeds from issue of shares 14,923 4,579
FIEIRITE R New bank borrowings 258,909 896,886
EEIRITERK Repayment of bank borrowings (267,763) (909,552)
MEMRERST 2 RS H Payment of capital element of finance
lease obligations (1,149) (796)
SRR S Dividends paid - (3,154)
MEETBEL/(FIAZEFRE Net cash generated from/(used in)
financing activities 4,920 (12,037)
RERBLEEW2FORD),#n Net (decrease)/increase in cash and
cash equivalents (45,087) 1,419
ROA—BZREFBEEEEY Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April 105,444 104,380
INECE HTRIRS MRS EEYM 2 FE  Effect of foreign exchange rate change on cash
R and cash equivalents, net (197) (355)
REA=+—HZREEREZEEY Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March 60,160 105,444

HHEER 45 B 140 BAA O BT HhR 2 B -
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statements.

The notes on pages 45 to 140 are an integral part of these consolidated financial
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability
company incorporated in Bermuda on 3 February 1994 as an exempted
company under Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda. The address of its
registered office is Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 12,
Bermuda. The shares of the Company have been listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 14 April 1994.

The Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the manufacturing and distribution of electronic components,
contract electronic manufacturing services, and the distribution of
personal computer products. The Group operates mainly in Hong Kong,
Mainland China and Canada. During the year, the Group abandoned its
operations in the manufacturing of electronic components and consumer
electronics, and disposed of a major portion of electronic component
distributions. These constitute discontinued operations and further details
of which are set out in Notes 5 and 34.

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, unless
otherwise stated. These financial statements have been approved for
issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 22 July 2013.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of Daiwa Associate
Holdings Limited have been prepared in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”). The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of available-for-sale
financial assets which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in note 4.
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31 March 2013

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (continued)

2.1
(a)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Going concern basis

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Group
reported a loss of approximately HK$170,742,000
and a net operating cash outflow of approximately
HK$73,819,000. The loss was primarily due to the
discontinued operation of the “Consumer Electronics
and Electronic Components and Parts Manufacturing”
segment and the consequential provision made for
certain assets related to this segment. In addition, the
Group breached the covenant requirement of certain
banking facilities during the year and as at 31 March
2018. The facilities from these banks were approximately
HK$127,927,000, of which HK$90,989,000 had been
utilised as at 31 March 2013. As at 31 March 2013, the
above bank borrowings of HK$88,263,000 were classified
as current liabilities as they were either repayable on
demand or repayable within one year. Subsequent to year
end, the Group had obtained one-off waivers from strict
compliance with the covenant requirements in relation to
the outstanding bank borrowings of HK$84,864,000.

During the year, the Group completed a rights issue with
net proceeds of approximately HK$14,923,000 raised.
The Group successfully renewed banking facilities that
were due during the year ended 31 March 2013. The
Group also obtained new or renew banking facilities of
HK$40,000,000 from certain other banks during the year
ended 31 March 2013. In addition, the management
maintains continuous communication with the Group’s
principal banks on the renewal of existing banking
facilities that will fall due in the coming twelve months.
The directors have reviewed the Group’s bank loans and
banking facilities available to the Group and are of the
opinion that the bank loans and banking facilities with the
principal banks will be renewed when their current terms
expire.

The directors have also prepared cash flow projections
for the coming twelve months and are of the opinion that,
having taken into consideration the Group’s history of its
ability to renew its existing banking facilities, the ability to
obtain additional financing from the financial institutions
including through the pledge of land and buildings (none
of which are currently pledged), its anticipated cash
inflows from continuing operations in the coming year;
and its expected future working capital requirements,
there are sufficient financial resources available to the
Group at least in the coming twelve months to meet its
liabilities as and when they fall due.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Going concern basis (continued)

On the above basis, the directors believe that the Group
will continue as a going concern and consequently have
prepared the consolidated financial statements on a going
concern basis.

Change of depreciation method

During the year, the Group reassessed the utilisation
pattern of its machinery and equipment whose costs
were previously allocated to their residual values (if
any) over their estimated useful lives using the reducing
balance method, and considered that the use of the
straight line method could better reflect the actual usage
of these assets. The change has resulted in an increase
in depreciation expense of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2013 of approximately HK$4,882,000. A similar
level of depreciation charge is expected in future periods
over the shorter remaining useful lives of the relevant
individual assets. Details of the Group’s depreciation
charge during the year are included in Note 17.

Effect of adopting amendments to existing
standards

The following amendments to existing standards are
mandatory for accounting periods beginning on or after 1
April 2012:

o HKAS 12 “Deferred tax: Recovery of underlying assets”
(Amendment)

o HKFRS 1 “Severe hyperinflation and removal of fixed dates for
(Amendment) first-time adopters”

o HKFRS7 “Disclosures — Transfers of financial assets”
(Amendment)

The adoption of these amendments to standards did not
have any significant impact on the results and financial
position of the Group.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
PO |C|ES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(d)

Standards, amendments and interpretation to
existing standards that are not yet effective and
have not been early adopted by the Group

The following published standards, and amendments and
interpretations to existing standards are mandatory for the
Group’s accounting periods beginning on or after 1 April
2013 or later periods and have not been early adopted by

the Group:

o HKAS 19 (2011)
o HKAS 27 (2011)

o HKAS 28 (2011)

o HKFRS9

o HKFRS 10
o HKFRS 11
o HKFRS 12
o HKFRS 13

¢ Amendments
to HKAS 1
(Revised)

¢ Amendments to
HKAS 32

¢ Amendments to
HKAS 36

¢ Amendments to
HKFRS 7

¢ Amendments to
HKFRS 10

¢ Amendments to
HKFRS 11

¢ Amendments to
HKFRS 12

¢ Amendments
to HKAS 27
(2011)

o HK(FRIC) —
Int 20

o HK(FRIC) —
Int 21

“Employee benefits";
“Separate financial statements;

“Investments in associates and joint ventures™;

“Financial instruments™;

“Consolidated financial statements™;

“Joint arrangements”;

“Disclosure of interests in other entities™;

“Fair value measurement™;

“Presentation of items of other comprehensive income™;

“Financial instruments: Presentation — Offsetting financial
assets and financial liabilities™;

“Recoverable amount disclosures for non-financial
assets’™;

“Financial instruments: Disclosures — Offsetting financial
assets and financial liabilities"?;

“Consolidated financial statements™;

“Joint arrangements”;

“Disclosure of interests in other entities: Transition
guidance’;

“Investment entities™;

“Stripping costs in the production phrase of a
surface mine"%; and

“Levies™.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(d)

(e)

Standards, amendments and interpretation to
existing standards that are not yet effective and
have not been early adopted by the Group (continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July

2012

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2013

s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2014

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2015

The directors anticipate that the adoption of the above
new standards, interpretations and amendments to
existing standards will not result in a significant impact on
the results and financial position of the Group.

As a result of the discontinued operations as mentioned
in Note 5 during the year, comparative figures of the
consolidated income statement and consolidated
statement of comprehensive income in prior year have
been restated to conform to the presentation of the
current year. These restatements have no impact on the
Group’s total equity as at 31 March 2012 and 1 April
2011, or on the Group’s profit for the year ended 31
March 2012.
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2. EESHBEME® 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.2 =G| 2.2 Subsidiaries
(a) aRE (a) Consolidation
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A 50

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose
entities) over which the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies generally
accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of the
voting rights. The existence and effect of potential voting
rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are
considered when assessing whether the Group controls
another entity. The Group also assesses existence of
control where it does not have more than 50% of the
voting power but is able to govern the financial and
operating policies by virtue of de-facto control.

De-facto control may arise from circumstances where it
does not have more than 50% of the voting power but
is able to govern the financial and operating policies by
virtue of de-facto control.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances, income and
expenses on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Profits and losses resulting from inter-
company transactions that are recognised in assets are
also eliminated. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

(a) Consolidation (continued)

(i

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. ldentifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in
a business combination are measured initially
at their fair values at the acquisition date. The
Group recognises any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis, either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interest’s proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

Goodwill is initially measured as the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred
and the fair value of non-controlling interest over
the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If this consideration is lower than the
fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired, the difference is recognised in profit or
loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2. EESHHBEHBE» 2.

22 KEBARE) 2.2  Subsidiaries (continued)
(a) EHRE (&) (a) Consolidation (continued)
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When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is re-measured to its
fair value at the date when control is lost, with the
change in carrying amount recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount
for the purposes of subsequently accounting for
the retained interest as an associate, joint venture
or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted

7 PR SRS for as if the Group had directly disposed of
MASKEEEEREER the related assets or liabilities. This may mean
HMEENBRE- E%L% that amounts previously recognised in other
ZZAEEMERE comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
@ﬁ@u?ﬂﬁ%ﬁ(%ﬁé%ﬁﬁ loss.
:n:}é!ﬁﬁ °©
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

(b)

(c)

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment, if any. Cost also includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving dividends from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income
of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or
if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net
assets including goodwill.

Associates
Associates are all entities over which the Group

generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and

has significant influence but not control,

50% of the voting rights. Investment in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method,
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased

the investment is initially

or decreased to recognise the investor’s share of the
profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition.
The Group’s investment in associates includes goodwill
identified on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.
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31 March 2013

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2

2.3

Subsidiaries (continued)

(c)

Associates (continued)

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is
recognised in the income statement, and its share of
post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive
income is recognised in other comprehensive income with
a corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of
the investment. When the Group’s share of losses in an
associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables, the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in
the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate and
its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent
to ‘share of profit/(loss) of an associate’ in the income
statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group and
its associate are recognised in the Group’s financial
statements only to the extent of unrelated investor’s
interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of associates have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the

internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.

The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for

allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating

segments, has been identified as the executive directors that

make strategic decisions.
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31 March 2013

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

(c)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (“the functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar
(“HK$”), which is the Company’s functional and the
Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items
are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the income statement.

All foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in
the consolidated income statement within “other gains —

net”.
Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;
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31 March 2013

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4

2.5

Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c) Group companies (continued)

(i) income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the dates
of the transactions); and

(ifi) all resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing
rate. Exchange differences arising are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Group, is
classified as investment property.

Investment property is carried at cost, including related
transaction costs, less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The building portion of investment property is depreciated over a
period of 50 years.

Where the carrying amount of an investment property is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount, it is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying
amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance
costs are charged to profit or loss during the financial period in
which they are incurred.
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31 March 2013

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5

2.6

2.7

Investment properties (continued)

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is
reclassified as property, plant and equipment, and its carrying
amount at the date of reclassification becomes its cost for
accounting purposes.

Land use rights

Land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost mainly
represents consideration paid for the rights to use the land on
which various plant and buildings are situated for a prescribed
period from the date the respective rights were granted.
Amortisation of land use rights is calculated on a straight-line
basis over the period of leases.

Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings comprise mainly factories and offices.
Leasehold land classified as finance lease and all other property,
plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less depreciation.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to
the income statement during the financial period in which they
are incurred.
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31 March 2013

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Leasehold land classified as finance lease commences
amortisation from the time when the land interest becomes
available for its intended use. Amortisation of leasehold land
classified as finance lease and depreciation of buildings are
calculated using the straight-line methods to allocate their cost
over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Leasehold land classified as finance Over the lease terms

lease
Buildings 50 years
During the year, the Group reassessed the utilisation pattern of
its other assets whose costs were previously allocated to their
residual values (if any) over their estimated useful lives using the
reducing balance method, and considered that the use of the
straight line method could better reflect the actual usage of these

assets. The below set out the details of depreciation method
currently adopted by the Group:

Periods from 1 October
Periods prior to 1 October 2012 2012 onwards

Plant and machinery Reducing balance 15% Straight line 6 to 7 years
Leasehold improvements,

furniture, fixtures and

Reducing balance 10% to 33%  Straight line 5 to 10 years
equipment

Motor vehicles Reducing balance 15% to 33% Straight line 5 years

Moulds and tooling Reducing balance 15% to 50% Straight line 5 years

The details of impact arising from the change in depreciation

method are detailed in Note 2.1(b).

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.
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31 March 2013

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7

2.8

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Construction-in-progress represents buildings, plant and
machinery under construction or pending installation and is stated
at cost. Cost includes the costs of construction of buildings, the
costs of plant and machinery, installation, testing and other direct
costs. No depreciation is made on construction-in-progress until
such time as the relevant assets are completed and ready for
intended use. When the assets concerned are brought into use,
the costs are transferred to property, plant and equipment and
depreciated in accordance with the policy as stated in above.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount (note 2.9).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised within
‘Other gains— net’ in the income statement.

Intangible assets

(a) Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries and
represents the excess of the consideration transferred
over the Company’s interest in net fair value of the net
identifiable assets,
the acquiree.

liabilities and contingent liabilities of

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is allocated to each of the
cash-generating units (“CGUs”), or groups of CGUs,
that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination. Each unit or group of units to which the
goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level within
the entity at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the
operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or
more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of
goodwill is compared to the recoverable amount, which
is the higher of value in use and the fair value less costs
to sell. Any impairment is recognised immediately as an
expense and is not subsequently reversed.
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2.

31 March 2013

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.8

2.9

Intangible assets (continued)

(b) Technical know-how

Technical know-how is shown at historical cost. Technical
know-how has a definite useful life and is carried at
cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate the cost of technical know-how over its
estimated useful lives of 4 years.

(c) Club debenture

Club debenture represents golf club membership and is
stated at cost less impairment, if any.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example, goodwill,
are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment
at each reporting date.
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31 March 2013

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Financial assets

(a)

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets into the following

categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans and

receivables and available-for-sale. The classification

depends on the purpose for which the financial assets

were acquired. Management determines the classification

of its financial assets at initial recognition.

(i

(i)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. They are
included in current assets, except for the amounts
that are settled or expected to be settled more
than 12 months after the end of the reporting
period. These are classified as non-current assets.
The Group’s loans and receivables comprise
“trade and notes receivables”, “deposits and other
receivables” and “cash and cash equivalents” in
the consolidated balance sheet (Notes 2.14 and
2.15).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated in this
category or not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-current
assets unless the investment matures or
management intends to dispose of it within 12
months at the end of the reporting period.

As at 31 March 2013 and 2012, the Group did
not hold any financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss.
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Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date — the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments
are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs
for all financial assets not carried at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value, and
transaction costs are expensed in the income statement.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the investments have expired
or have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Available-
for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair
value. Loans and receivables are subsequently carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
the ‘financial assets at fair value through profit or loss’
category are presented in the income statement within
‘other gains — net’ in the period in which they arise.
Dividend income from financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss is recognised in the income statement as
part of other income when the Group’s right to receive
payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary
securities classified as available-for-sale are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold
or impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustment
recognised in equity is included in the income statement
as “other gains — net”.

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated
using the effective interest method is recognised in the
income statement as part of other income. Dividends on
available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in
the income statement as part of other income when the
Group’s right to receive payments is established.
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31 March 2013

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.11

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is

reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable

right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention

to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability

simultaneously.

Impairment of financial assets

(a)

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a
‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the
debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate
with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset
is reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised in
the income statement. If a loan has a variable interest
rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss
is the current effective interest rate determined under
the contract. As a practical expedient, the Group may
measure impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair
value using an observable market price.
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31 March 2013

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12

2.13

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(a) Assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor’s
credit rating), the reversal of the previously recognised
impairment loss is recognised in the income statement.

(b) Assets classified as available-for-sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. For debt
securities, the Group uses the criteria referred to in (a)
above.

In the case of equity investments classified as available-
for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of the security below its cost is also evidence that
the assets are impaired. If any such evidence exists for
available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss —
measured as the difference between the acquisition cost
and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on
that financial asset previously recognised in profit or loss
— is removed from equity and recognised in profit or loss.
Impairment losses recognised in the income statement on
equity instruments are not reversed through the income
statement. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a
debt instrument classified as available-for-sale increases
and the increase can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in
profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed through the
income statement.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined by using the weighted average method.
The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw
materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related production
overheads (based on normal operating capacity). It excludes
borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable
selling expenses.
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31 March 2013

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.14

2.16

217

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary course of
business. If collection of trade and other receivables is expected
in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not,
they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flow, cash and cash
equivalents includes cash in hand and deposits held at call with
banks.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that
have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from
suppliers. Trade payables, other payables and accruals are
classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or
less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If
not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables, other payables and accruals are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.
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31 March 2013

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.18

2.19

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the income
statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready
for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets
is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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31 March 2013

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.20

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred

tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement, except to the

extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive

income or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised

in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

(a)

(b)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of reporting period in the countries where the Group
operates and generates taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid
to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the consolidated financial statements. However,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from
the initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax
is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of reporting period and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.
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31 March 2013

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(b)

(c)

Deferred income tax (continued)

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries and an associate,
except for deferred tax liability where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is legally enforceable rights to offset current income
tax assets against current income tax liabilities and when
the deferred income tax assets and liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the taxable entity or different taxable entities where
there is an intention to settle the balance on a net basis.

2.21 Employee benefits

(a)

Pension obligations

The Group participates in various defined contribution
retirement benefit plans which are available to all relevant
employees. These plans are generally funded through
payments to schemes established by government or
trustee-administered funds. A defined contribution plan is
a pension plan under which the Group pays contributions
on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis into a
separate entity. The Group has no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does
not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefit
relating to employee service in the current and prior
periods.

All contributions to pension plans are fully and
immediately vested and the Group had no unvested
benefits available to reduce its future contributions.
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31 March 2013

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.21

2.22

Employee benefits (continued)

(b) Bonus plan

The expected cost of bonus payments is recognised
as a liability when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of services rendered
by employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation
can be made. Liabilities of bonus plan are expected to
be settled within twelve months and are measured at the
amounts expected to be paid when they are settled.

(c) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result
of services rendered by employees up to the end of
reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any
one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase
in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense within “finance costs” in the income statement.

69 BERmEmEEREAER QA

Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited



B 7% ¥R 3R N R

Notes to the Financial Statements

—E—=F=H=1+—H

2. EESTHREE»

2.23

2.24

HEWEREEAN)
(a) EEHEY

NEERERBE BRI AR
LOBEETASE Z2YE
sk TARMBHEAQ  BIIE
BMEMRLD - MEMENERIGE
BHEEEZ A FERKEN
ENRZBEEAREESE)
BRER SHESHNEHR
BERVBER NEIEH
HAEENRESRIZFTEL
Tk - HHEESAZEME
MEBERETARE RIERED
BER- BBERZMNEEHD
REORAREMNBRER - &
M ERESERR 8GR
B RBEEHME -

(b) AEEEY

NEERBE BRI AR
N mE#RBEHERRMAE M
o BIEREED - REL
EHAEL ZMREREAR
AT 2 ERER)EHHAN
HAREB N BERPME -

LN

WAIZIHE B K B B Y sk e A B
ZRFEAERREMHEREKRD 2
R o WAEHBRIEN N - REMIEE
BILFIER - A BB A S5t & Ma
NWASHE - Bl E R RELBEN&ER
ARBIARAEBIATREZBN S
FE RIS RS R - REERE
BERGFELGES  XREEEFPE
A RBBHIRERRH B ERE -

EMEEERER QA 70

Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited

31 March 2013

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.23

2.24

Leases (as the lessee)

(a)

(b)

Finance leases

Leases of property, plant and equipment that substantially
transfer to the Group all the risks and rewards of
ownership of assets are classified as finance leases.
Finance leases are capitalised at the inception of the
lease at the lower of the fair value of the leased assets
and the present value of the minimum lease payments.
Each lease payment is allocated between the liability
and finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate
on the finance balance outstanding. The corresponding
rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included
in current and non-current liabilities, where appropriate.
The interest element of the finance cost is charged to the
income statement over the lease period so as to produce
a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period.

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are charged to the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the lease periods.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration

received or receivable, and represents amounts receivable for

goods supplied, stated net of discounts, returns and value

added taxes. The Group recognises revenue when the amount

of revenue can be reliably measured; when it is probable that

future economic benefits will flow to the entity; and when specific

criteria have been met for each of the Group’s activities, as

described below. The Group bases its estimates of return on

historical results, taking into consideration the type of customer,

the type of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.
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31 March 2013

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.24

2.25

2.26

Revenue recognition (continued)

(a) Sales of goods

Sale of goods are recognised when a group entity
has delivered products to the customer, the customer
has accepted the products, and there is no unfulfilled
obligation that could affect the customer’s acceptance of
the products and collectively of the related receivables is
reasonably assured.

(b) Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method.

(c) Rental income

Rental income under operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the dividends are
approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors, where
appropriate.

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s
business, the operations and cash flows of which can be clearly
distinguished from the rest of the Group and which represents a
separate major line of business or geographic area of operations,
or is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate
major line of business or geographical area of operations, or is a
subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

When an operation is classified as discontinued, a single amount
is presented in the income statement, which comprises the post-
tax profit or loss of the discontinued operation and the post-tax
gain or loss recognised on the measurement to fair value less
costs to sell, or on the disposal, of the assets or disposal group
constituting the discontinued operation.
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3.

31 March 2013

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign exchange risk, price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, and
cash flow and fair value interest-rate risks. The Group’s overall
risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects

on the Group’s financial performance.

Management regularly monitors the financial risks of the Group.
The use of derivative financial instruments to hedge certain
risk exposures is governed by the Group’s policies approved
by the Board of Directors of the Company. The Group would
occasionally enter into certain forward foreign exchange contracts
to manage its exchange risks. The Group does not use derivative
financial instruments for speculative purposes.

(a) Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong, Mainland
China and Canada with most of the transactions settled
in United States dollar (“US$”), HK$, Chinese Renminbi
(“RMB”) and Canadian dollar (“CAD”). Foreign exchange
risk arises when future commercial transactions or
recognised assets or liabilities are denominated in a
currency that is not the entity’s functional currency. The
Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk from various
currency exposures, primarily with respect to US$, CAD
and RMB. Since HK$ is pegged to US$, management
are of the opinion that the exchange rate risk exposure
arising from US$ with respect to HK$ is insignificant.

Management has a policy to require group companies
to manage their foreign exchange risk against their
functional currencies. It mainly includes managing the
exposures arising from sales and purchases made by
the relevant group companies in currencies other than
their own functional currencies. The Group also manages
its foreign exchange risk by performing regular reviews
of the Group’s net foreign exchange exposures and
would consider the use of foreign exchange contracts to
manage its foreign exchange risks, where appropriate.
As at 31 March 2013, the Group did not have any
outstanding foreign exchange contracts.
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31 March 2013

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continueq)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(a)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

As at 31 March 2013, certain of the Group’s receivables,
cash and bank balances and trade payables were also
denominated in foreign currencies, details of which have
been disclosed in the respective notes to these financial
statements.

At 31 March 2013, if HK$ had weakened/strengthened
by 5% against RMB, with all other variables held
constant, post-tax profit for the year would have
been approximately HK$139,000 higher/lower (2012:
HK$188,000 higher/lower), mainly as a result of
foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of RMB-
denominated financial assets and liabilities.

At 31 March 2013, if CAD had weakened/strengthened
by 5% against US$, with all other variables held
constant, post-tax profit for the year would have
been approximately HK$797,000 lower/higher (2012:
HK$801,000 lower/higher), mainly as a result of
foreign exchange losses/gains on translation of CAD-
denominated financial assets and liabilities.
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3.

31 March 2013

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

(c)

Price risk

The Group is exposed to securities price risk as
investments held by the Group are classified as available-
for-sale financial assets in the balance sheet as at 31
March 2013. The Group is not exposed to commodity
price risk. As the Group’s equity securities classified
as available-for-sale financial assets are relatively
insignificant, management considers that any reasonable
changes in fair value of these securities would not have a
significant financial impact to the financial statements.

Credit risk

Other than a receivable from a customer of
HK$20,471,000 which has been fully provided for, the
Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk.
The carrying amounts of cash at banks, trade and notes
receivables, and deposits and other receivables included
in the consolidated balance sheet represent the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its financial
assets.

The majority of the Group’s cash at banks are deposited
in major financial institutions located in Hong Kong,
Mainland China and Canada, which management believes
are of high credit quality. Management does not expect
any losses arising from non-performance by these
counterparties.

The Group also has policies in place to ensure that sale
of products are made to customers with an appropriate
credit history and the Group performs periodic credit
evaluations of its customers. Normally the Group does not
require collaterals from trade debtors. For new customers
or certain customers with relatively short period of
business relationship, the Group would generally apply
credit insurance.



B 7% 3R N R

Notes to the Financial Statements

===

3.

=F=HA=+—H

BEERER 2

3.1

BBEREREE)
(c) FERRGE

(d)

IR E T AR K (B Bl U 2
FRIB R MUK E EE X o
SRR BB AN R AL 8 - A
B - BBRR - B2 ERRR
BERELFERZFH - KER
Uiz 0 & 535K B 388 A A2 85 7E R4 A
HEN  EB=EERRBEEEY
B3R 7o 0 Rk

B EZmE

BEARDECAREIREERT
RHNRERASEEY  REBR
HZ AR EEREAER A E
REZ -

REBEREZ FERARERIE
Fn %%%&Exf - ERNEEE
% AR HERE R HE M
ERFREERT - REEBBA
HERERITEESTRAE HE
EEEAMRREES(WMFRE) -

REFNHRRREHERER LA
HORBE @B RARREFTEH
RekBeEEY  LEBRHT
HEONAEREE  WnREH RS
HMENE S FH ©

ZEHAIREFBIIEXNER -
KAl g8 B 2 R ER1T & T #E i 4
ﬁﬁx*iwm%ﬁ HRKEE

CRKEBER-_TE—=£=A1
:+*EIZE7WZ%1 HiRE KR
TZEAARER - RIFRRR SR
SHAKEE -

3.

31 March 2013

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continueq)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(c)

(d)

Credit risk (continued)

Management makes periodic collective assessment as
well as individual assessment on the recoverability of
trade and other receivables based on historical payment
records, the length of the overdue period, the financial
strength of the trade and other debtors, the relevant
credit insurance coverage and whether there are any
disputes with the relevant debtors. The Group’s historical
experience in collection of trade and other receivables
falls within the recorded allowances and directors are
of the opinion that adequate provision for uncollectible
receivables has been made in these financial statements.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity management implies maintaining
sufficient cash and cash equivalents and the availability of
funding through an adequate amount of committed credit
facilities.

The Group’s primary cash requirements have been
for additions of and upgrades on property, plant and
equipment,
trade and other payables and payment for operating

settlement of borrowings, payment for

expenses. The Group mainly finances its working capital
requirements through a combination of internal resources
and bank borrowings, as necessary.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure it maintains
sufficient cash and cash equivalents and adequate
amount of committed credit facilities to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and long term.

Taking into account the repayment on demand clauses on
bank borrowings and the possible demand by banks for
immediate repayment of borrowings due to the breach of
certain covenant requirements as details in note 2.1, all of
the Group’s financial liabilities as at 31 March 2013 were
due for settlement contractually within 12 months, with
their contractual undiscounted cash flows approximate
their respective carrying amounts.
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£8 Group
—2-=5=F=1-H At 31 March 2013
BE Borrowings

e 2

f
R ERREMENE

Trade payables
Accruals and other payables

“E-"§=A=1-H At 31 March 2012

BE Borrowings

R EXRE Trade payables

R BRREMERNFE Accruals and other payables
RZE—Z=FRZZ—ZF=

A=+—RH FBEAGIZERE
BEAREHNRTZEARE

HAB K o
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31 March 2013

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Financial risk factors (continued)

(d)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities
into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the balance sheet date to the contractual
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are
the contractual undiscounted cash flows,
interest payments computed using contractual rates,
based on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. For the purpose of maturity analysis,
the maturity date of term loans with no breach of bank
covenant requirements is based on agreed scheduled

including

repayments set out in the loan agreements, disregarding
any repayment on demand clauses.

-F2RE —EZRF

—£R Between Between RENE
Within 1 year 1 and 2 years 2 and 5 years Over 5 years
TET FET FET T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
103,452 1,338 3,003 10,125
65,425 - - -
41,566 - - -
214,527 22,816 25,614 10,928
143,380 - - -
19,873 - - -

As at 31 March 2013 and 2012, all the Company’s
financial liabilities are due for settlement contractually
within 12 months.
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3.

31 March 2013

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continueq)

3.1

3.2

Financial risk factors (continued)
(e) Cash flow and fair value interest-rate risk

The Group’s income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market interest
rates. The Group has no significant interest-bearing
assets except for the cash at banks, details of which are
disclosed in note 26. The Group’s exposure to changes in
interest rates is mainly attributable to its bank borrowings,
details of which are disclosed in note 27. Borrowings
carried at floating rates expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk. The Group has not used any interest
rate swaps to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.

As at 31 March 2013, if the interest rates on borrowings
had been 50 basis points higher/lower, with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year would
have been HK$252,000 lower/higher (2012: HK$414,000
lower/higher), mainly as a result of higher/lower interest
expense on floating rate borrowings.

Fair value estimation

As at 31 March 2013 and 2012, all the resulting fair value
estimates on the available-for-sale financial assets are made
according to the fair value measurement hierarchy under HKFRS 7.

The different levels of fair value measurements are defined as
follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities (level 1).

° Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from
prices) (level 2).

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs)
(level 3).
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“F-—#-H-F1-H 31 March 2013
3. MBEBREE# 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 ATEMEGEE) 3.2  Fair value estimation (continued)
TRERAESEAHEESREER " The following table shows fair value measurement hierarchy
T—=FR=-ZT—-—F=A=+—HH to which the Group’s available-for-sale financial assets are
REBEZFEER : measured at fair value as at 31 March 2013 and 2012:

—E—=F —E—=
2013 2012
FET FEr
HK$’000 HK$’000
B&— Level 1
RIS D BEAHREESH Equity securities classified as available-for-sale
BE financial assets 328 302
BR= Level 3
BETEERBRELDEAAH Key management insurance classified as
HESHEE available-for-sale financial assets 14,808 14,457
15,136 14,759

EEEMEEENMB TANAFER
BHEEANTSREIR - ERER D
RMEAREBELZRZHN - RF5E - &
2 ERAL  EERBEREERRE
S MzSRERRRATRZERE
ETHERNERTERZE - &mi5
WA RIERE - ARERANMBEEEN
MSRERERERE  WETABE
RER— -

RBEERMSEE/ KT A0
BIMTE TR )R FER A E R
EE - MERNRENAERTHE
B @B KEEENEEME o afh
AR -UBEIAENATEMRENMBEE
RN A RAIBREIE - BIZM BT AT
AEBR= -

IN—IAKZ A E K A FFRIR AT B SR
mi5EE - ARMBTAINAZBR= -
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The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets
is based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date.
A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and
regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry
group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions
on an arm’s length basis. The quoted market price used for
financial assets held by the Group is the current bid price. These
instruments are included in level 1.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in
an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives)
is determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation
techniques maximise the use of observable market data where
it is available and rely as little as possible on entity-specific
estimates. If all significant inputs required to estimate the fair
value of an instrument are observable, the instrument is included
in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable
market data, the instrument is included in level 3.
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31 March 2013

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continueq)

3.2

Fair value estimation (continued)

The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments
for the year ended 31 March 2013:

£5

Group
—E—=F —E——F
2013 2012
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
i) Beginning of the year 14,457 =
iﬁé?]l] Additions - 15,307
AN EW(EE) Fair value gains/(losses) 351 (850)
HAR End of the year 14,808 14,457

HREHARENHEER  SEZRDE
MEEZEHE UWEERERReEE
Y BREXRBERERER Zek
Hip s ARERBERAEL
HE EEEMNERRE  BUE
A EtENFEREE  HEAQT
EEEAER -

BEXEBRER

AEENESERER  =RESERE
HBELE  ARBRREHRDBRANBEAM
B A ARENR - AREFRED
EREEAREE KA

REBEERERER  WRBLBERER
EEELRE - BTHRSRFAEER
g AEBE R g ABE N TRERN
BRESHE MRRREER  BITHR
FEEFT Y IRITE K

REEFNAERNEBLREREER -
U b IR IRE SRR R AR B ARG H -
ERFEREEE(BEaHEERRE
RETFIENE R IEBN A E )M ER 2
kBReEEY - - LEARIERE |(ME
HEEABERM) REBFE

3.3

The carrying amounts of the Group’s current financial assets,
including cash and cash equivalents, trade and notes receivables,
deposits and other receivables, and the Group’s current financial
liabilities including trade payables, accruals and other payables,
and borrowings, approximate their fair values due to their short
maturities.

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

The Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions. In order to
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust
the dividend payments to shareholders, return capital to

shareholders, issue new shares or obtain new bank borrowings

The Group also monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net
debt is calculated as total borrowings (including current and non-
current borrowings as shown in the consolidated balance sheet)
less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated as
“equity”,
debt.

as shown in the consolidated balance sheet, plus net
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31 March 2013

3. HEERERE® 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 EBXrEBEE(E) 3.3  Capital risk management (continued)

TREARM - ZE—=FKR-_T——F=
A=+—08 SB2EXRERNOT :

The table below analyses the Group’s capital structure as at 31
March 2013 and 2012:

—E—=F —E—=
2013 2012
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$’000
RIEE (Ht27) Total borrowings (Note 27) 114,268 266,645
B BERBSEEBY (A E26) Less: Cash and cash equivalents (Note 26) (60,160) (105,444)
BRFER Net debt 54,108 161,201
e Total equity 212,906 378,464
FER=WiN Total capital 267,014 539,665
BEABELE Gearing ratio 20% 30%

M-—ZE—=fF=A=+—08  £E7
5 F {8 B 42 %8 49 & 190,092,000 % 7T
— = — — 4 :389,795,000% 7T ) * M
H 115,082,000 L(=ZF — = F :
311,057,000 70) EWEEFEA o

EEGHATTRERR

Bt EERERT L - WABBELERMEMER
EREN  BEEERBATHESAEZR
REMIEA -

REBE R KA RBRR - NEBE R
EH A PAS 2 e T —EHRENEHE
BER - LT RAEEE RS METRR
& AEHRARTEMBRFELEEREGEZ
RE(EFEERBE -

(a) BERE

AEBERBESHBRIINHE2.8
FHHBETAAREEEMNRER
£ REEMETZAIKESEIRE
EREEMER - WS ERERM
st FHEEDIRHIFE16 ©
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As at 31 March 2013, the total banking facilities made available
to the Group amounted to approximately HK$190,092,000 (2012:
HK$389,795,000), of which approximately HK$115,032,000
(2012: HK$311,057,000) was utilised by the Group.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPTIONS

Estimates are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The
resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are addressed below.

(a) Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy stated
in Note 2.8. The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units
have been determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations required the use of estimates (Note 16).
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31 March 2013

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPTIONS (continued)

(b)

(c)

Estimated impairment of other non-financial assets

Other non-financial assets including property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets and land use rights are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the related carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. Determining whether impairment has occurred
typically requires various estimates and assumptions, including
determining which cash flows are directly related to the
potentially impaired asset, the useful life over which cash
flows will occur, their amount, and the asset’s residual value,
if any. In turn, measurement of an impairment loss requires a
determination of recoverable amount, which is based on the best
information available. The Group derives the required cash flow
estimates from historical experience and internal business plans.
To determine recoverable amount, the Group uses cash flow
estimates discounted at an appropriate discount rate, quoted
market prices when available and independent appraisals, as
appropriate.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and selling expenses. These estimates are based
on the current market condition and the historical experience
of manufacturing and selling products of similar nature. It could
change significantly as a result of changes in customer taste
and competitor actions in response to severe industry cycle.
Management reassesses these estimates at the end of each
reporting period.
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31 March 2013

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPTIONS (continued)

(d)

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the worldwide
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain.
The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues
based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences would
impact the current and deferred income tax assets and liabilities
in the period in which such determination is made.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

&=
Group
—E—=F —T—=

2013 2012

FET FET

HK$°000 HK$’000

(E31))

(Restated)
HESEER Continuing operations

= Turnover
HE S M Sales of goods 547,916 643,016
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31 March 2013

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)
Segment information

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing and distribution of
electronic components, contract electronic manufacturing services, and
the distribution of personal computer products.

The chief operating decision maker has been identified as the executive
directors (collectively referred to as the “CODM”) that make strategic
decisions. The CODM reviews the internal reporting of the Company and
its subsidiaries in order to assess performance and allocate resources.
Management has determined the operating segments based on these
reports.

The CODM considers the business from the perspective of the nature
of operations and the type of products, including the “Electronic
Components Distribution”, “Contract Electronic Manufacturing Services”
and “Personal Computer Distribution”.

On 23 November 2012, the Group disposed of the equity interests
in several wholly-owned subsidiaries including Daiwa Distribution
Limited, Daiwa Resources Limited (“DRL”), Daiwa Electronic Limited
(“DEL”), Daiwa Component (Shenzhen) Limited (“Daiwa SZ”) and Daiwa
Component (Shanghai) Limited (“Daiwa SH”) (together, the “disposal
group”) at a consideration and gain on disposal of HK$63,168,000 and
HK$39,501,000 respectively. The disposal group represents a major
portion of the Electronic Components Distribution segment.

During the year, the Group also abandoned the operations of the
Consumer Electronics and Electronics Components and Parts
Manufacturing segment.

The disposal group together with certain related operations, and the
abandoned manufacturing segment were classified as discontinued
operations for the year ended 31 March 2013. The discontinued
operations have resulted in a change in the Group’s structure and
therefore its composition of reporting segment. The comparative figures
of segment disclosure has been restated to conform to current year’s
presentation.
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31 March 2013

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)
Segment information (continued)

In addition, a specific review of the Group’s property, plant and
equipment is performed by the directors. As a result of which, certain
machinery and equipment has been fully provided for during the year and
further details are included in Note 17.

Each of the Group’s operating segments represents a strategic business
unit that is managed by the respective business unit leaders. Inter-
segment transactions are entered into under the normal commercial
terms and conditions that would normally be available to unrelated third
parties. CODM assesses the performance of the operating segments
based on a measure of profit before income tax. Other information
provided to the CODM is measured in a manner consistent with that in
the financial statements.

Assets of reportable segments exclude deferred income tax assets,
available-for-sale financial assets and corporate assets (mainly including
certain corporate properties and equipment and corporate cash and
bank balances), all of which are managed on a central basis. Liabilities of
reportable segments exclude current and deferred income tax liabilities,
corporate borrowings and other corporate liabilities. These are part of the
reconciliation to total balance sheet assets and liabilities.
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Turnover
Sales of goods

Results of reportable segments

A reconciliation of results of reportable
segments to profit for the year is as
follows:

Results of reportable segments

Unallocated income — net gains on
disposal of property, plant and
equipment

Unallocated expenses (Note (a))

Operating results
Finance costs — net

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Other segment information:

Capital expenditure

Depreciation on property, plant and
equipment

Amortisation of land use rights

Provision for impairment of trade
receivables

Provision for impairment of property, plant
and equipment (Note 17)

Provision for impairment of inventories

APERXTEREREXEEELN

TE HEREMEERS

31 March 2013

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

Segment information (continued)

The results of the disposals and abandonment are excluded from the

segment information with the comparative figures restated accordingly.

BE-Z-ZE=P=1-HLEE

Year ended 31 March 2013

BIEELH fAAEH
EERY EmlH
BT A Contract Personal
Electronic Electronic Computer

Components  Manufacturing Products RAE a%

Distribution Services Distribution Unallocated Total

TET FEn FET TET A

HK$°000 HK$7000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000

201,014 78,280 268,622 - 547,916

3,543 (233) 5,838 - 9,148

9,148

17,529

(9,967)

16,710

(878)

15,832

(1,928)

13,904

25 1,238 92 1,901 3,256

89 2,994 383 2,505 5,971

- - - 360 360

95 - 179 - 274

118 5,602 - 1,036 6,756

- - 903 - 903

Note (a): Unallocated expense mainly including salaries, depreciation, and other

operating expenses incurred at corporate level.
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—E—=F=H=1+—H 31 March 2013
5. WARZEHER @) 5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)
AEER(E) Segment information (continued)
—2-=f£=H=t1-H
As at 31 March 2013
ETSERY HABH
EERE EmSH
R i S Contract Personal
Electronic Electronic Computer
Components Manufacturing Products L
Distribution Services Distribution Total
FET FET FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
AHEE Segment assets
B Goodwill - - 28,201 28,201
HEpHaE Other segment assets 90,024 79,547 63,577 233,148
90,024 79,547 91,778 261,349
HLESREE Available-for-sale financial assets 15,136
PSR RIBEARERE  Assets related to discontinued operations
RPN EEE and other unallocated assets
(W2 () (Note (a)) 162,113

AHEEEBRNEESLE  Total assets per consolidated balance
sheet 438,598

AHEE Segment liabilities
ABEE Segment liabilties 73,666 38,166 32,634 144,466
BT Tax payable 1,490
EEMERARE Deferred income tax liabilties 253
BRIMSEEKIBAARR  Liabilities related to discontinued operations

EthRAMEE and other unallocated liabilties (Note (b))

(Bt (b)) 79,483

AHEEEBRNEEHAE  Total liabilities per consolidated
balance sheet 225,692

Hia# - Note:

(a) R-ZE—=F=A=+—8B EthAKHEE (@) As at 31 March 2013, other unallocated assets mainly included land
EXrZoRBECEERNEARERRAE and buildings in respect of all factory and office premises, and cash and
HEN Tt RET  BRERAzReRES cash equivalents for corporate usage related to continuing operations.
ZEY BARBELLEEBERZBENED Depreciation charge in respect of factory premises utilised by the
BIEEDDEER - ﬁf&ﬁﬂmﬂ:i‘“%if&‘ﬁ continuing operations is included in the related segment results. Assets
2 BE* Z BREARUGR 2 BRI K17 related to discontinued operation mainly included outstanding receivables

and inventories.

(b) RZZE—=F=A=+—H0 ' HthRkHi&a (b) As at 31 March 2013, other unallocated liabilities mainly included corporate
BEZRREEINEER CRIELEEKS borrowings. Liabilities related to discontinued operations mainly included
BzABFERRARNBEZEEREMNEE outstanding borrowings and trade payables.

BRIF o
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WARDEBER =) 5.

PEER(E)
g% Turnover
HERR Sales of goods
ERF P2 EE Results of reportable segments
RNV £ERAREEF|E A reconclliation of results of reportable
HFETHERMT - segments to profit for the year is as
follows:
ERF P EE Results of reportable segments
APEUWA — EEL3FH  Unallocated income — net gain on disposal
ERME - BEREEYR of land use rights, and property, plant
Nt and equipment
RAWRX(H# () Unallocated expenses (Note (3))
BELER Operating results
BENAR - 8 Finance costs — net
BB AT Profit before income tax
MERRX Income tax expense
REEFE Profit for the year
HtaHER Other segment information:
EAMTH Capital expenditure
nE  WERZENE Depreciation on property, plant and
equipment
TiERESR Amortisation of land use rights
ERERFRERERE Provision for impairment of trade
receivables
FERERE Provision for impairment of inventories
FERE Write-down of inventories

Kiet@): AOEAXIBEBERCEEEELD
TE HEREMEERS

31 March 2013

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

Segment information (continued)

BE-T-"H-A=t-HI%R
Year ended 31 March 2012

ETEXAH EAZH
KBRS EmiEH
R it Contract Personal
Electronic Electronic Computer
Components Manufacturing Products KR aa
Distribution Services Distribution Unallocated Total
FAT FET FHET FATL FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(E31) (31)
(Restated) (Restated)
210,575 167,571 274,870 - 643,016
5,668 4,074 5,839 - 15,581
15,581
41,941
(13,115)
44,407
(616)
43,791
(1,966)
41,825
68 8,881 50 2,069 11,068
69 2,382 355 3,867 6,673
- - - 402 402
178 - 240 - 418
- - 1,458 - 1,458
181 - - - 181
Note (a): Unallocated expense mainly including salaries, depreciation, and other

operating expenses incurred at corporate level.
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5. WARZEER =) 5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)
DEER(E) Segment information (continued)
“E--f=A=1-AH
As at 31 March 2012
ETEXAN EASH
EERS EmSH
R Contract Personal
Electronic Electronic Computer
Components Manufacturing Products ek
Distribution Services Distribution Total
FET FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(251 (251)
(restated) (restated)

FHEE Segment assets

BE Goodwill - - 28,781 28,781

EthAHaE Other segment assets 97,928 127,958 65,402 291,288

97,928 127,958 94,183 320,069
A EESREE Available-for-sale financial assets 14,759
BRFEHAE Deferred income tax assets 514
BRIEEEEKIBEEER  Asses related to discontinued operations
HERAEEEMZE) and other unallocated assets (Note (3)) 482,171
AHEESERY Total assets per consolidated balance
BEAER sheet 817,513
AHEE Segment liabilities
AHEfE Segment liabilities 68,065 30,472 32,684 131,211
FERT B Tax payable 1,469
I?Uﬁ SHak Deferred income tax liabilities 1,652
BRHEELKREEE Liabilities related to discontinued operations
HiR @Eﬁi\(ﬁ/f,z/b/) and other unallocated liabilities (Note (b)) 304,717
AHEESERN Total liabilities per consolidated
BE4E balance sheet 439,049

HieE - Note:

(a) R-ZE——F=A=+—H ' EthRxHDEE (a) As at 31 March 2012, other unallocated assets mainly included land
EXrEaEEBERKELEKNERELRIAE and buildings in respect of all factory and office premises, and cash and
HEN T REFT  BXEACHESLES cash equivalents for corporate usage related to continuing operations.
ZEY - ARELCEEBHEBZBETED Depreciation charge in respect of factory premises utilised by the
BEEEEOPEREN - CRIEEEEKE continuing operations are included in the related segment results

Az EETERTERKRF 2 EWEBERFE accordingly. Assets related to discontinued operation mainly included
outstanding receivables and inventories.

(b) R-ZTE——F=F=+—H' ' HWEXHica (b) As at 31 March 2012, other unallocated liabilities mainly included corporate
BTXrEEFEERNEE - Eé%¢i<<<€£¥ﬁ%?§ borrowings. Liabilities related to discontinued operations mainly included
HZEBETERRAMNBZEEREMNE outstanding borrowings and trade payables.
8RIE -
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WARDEER 2 5.

DEWER(E)

REEMRER - INBEP K (BT P AEL
B)E2DMEERIATHIE

B Hong Kong

Fp B K e Mainland China
SIS North America
BOM Europe

RZFE—=F=A=+—8 uREBZkR
HEERLRE BKEE AHEESMEE -
BNRERAEHASRECHEREENG
9,433,000 7T(=— & — — 4 : 12,363,000
) MEMMME(EZ2FERMEKR)HIE
RENBEXA112,789,0008 T(ZFE——4 :
151,164,000 7T) °

HIE—E—=F=A=1+—BHIL&E K&£E
ZRANGARFREAFEEEBELEBOE
22% ' MEARFELI9% °

H A 6.
e WA Rental income
Efh Others

31 March 2013

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)
Segment information (continued)
The entity is domiciled in Hong Kong. The revenue from external

customers attributable to Hong Kong and other locations (on the basis of
customers’ locations) is analysed as follows:

ShERE F Wi
Revenue from external customers

—E—= —F—=
2013 2012
FHET FET
HK$°000 HK$’000
(&%)
(Restated)
130,003 137,752
73,411 80,812
268,622 274,870
75,880 149,582
547,916 643,016

At 31 March 2013, the total non-current assets other than goodwill,
available-for-sale financial assets, prepayments and rental deposits
and deferred income tax assets located in Hong Kong is approximately
HK$9,433,000 (2012: HK$12,363,000), and the total non-current assets
located in other locations (mainly in the Mainland China and Canada) is
approximately HK$112,789,000 (2012: HK$151,164,000).

For the year ended 31 March 2013, sale to the five largest customers of
the Group in total accounted for approximately 22% of the Group’s total
revenue, with the largest customer accounted for approximately 9%.

OTHER INCOME

—E—= T
2013 2012
FHAR FHAT
HK$°000 HK$’000
(E31)

(Restated)

774 276

101 112

875 388
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7. OTHER GAINS, NET

31 March 2013

—E—= —T—=
2013 2012
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$’000
(E51)
(Restated)
Net exchange gains 866 842
8. EXPENSES BY NATURE
-=F—= —F——
2013 2012
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
(2%1)
(Restated)
Changes in inventories of finished goods and
work-in-progress (28,187) (834)
Trading merchandise sold, and raw materials
and consumables used 484,731 527,889
Provision for impairment of inventories 903 1,458
Write-down of inventories - 181
Auditor’s remuneration 2,242 1,627
Amortisation of land use rights 360 402
Depreciation
— owned property, plant and equipment 5,290 6,409
— property, plant and equipment held under
finance leases 681 264
Provision for impairment of trade receivables
(included in general and administrative
expenses) 274 418
Employment benefit expenses
(including directors’ emoluments) (Note 9) 49,611 72,336
Operating lease rental in respect of land and
buildings 7,106 7,704
Travelling and office expenses 9,325 11,703
Transportation expenses 4,404 3,271
Advertising expenses 261 257
Repairs and maintenance expenses 807 749
Other expenses 5,912 7,946
543,720 641,780
Representing:
Cost of sales 479,197 572,548
Selling and distribution expenses 10,224 9,921
General and administrative expenses 54,299 59,311
543,720 641,780
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9. EIEFNMX 9. EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT EXPENSES
BREEMNEeCETERFFAIOT : Employment benefit expenses, including directors’ emoluments, consist
of:
—EB—= —ZE—=
2013 2012
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
(&%)
(Restated)
oM - TE KERL Wages, salaries and allowances 43,903 68,584
1AL Bonuses 2,988 1,590
BIRERA — EREEREE Pension costs — defined contribution plans 1,991 1,518
=il Welfare and benefits 729 644
49,611 72,336
HERIREEREENETIBIRSY(TE Employee benefit expenses (excluding directors’ emoluments) relating to
HEEEMSE) 5 46,288,000/8 (=T — —4F : discontinued operations of HK$46,288,000 (2012: HK$61,734,000) were
61,734,000/ 70 ) * Z e BAEERYIEH K= included as part of the expenses of discontinued operations set out in
S4B RIEKE XX ° Note 34.
10. FER A — FEE 10. FINANCE COSTS — NET
—=E—= —_F—=
2013 2012
FETT FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
(&%)
(Restated)
RITFE A BUA Interest income from bank deposits 854 752
RA B ERIERNIRITERZ Interest expense on bank loans which
FEFAXZ contains a repayment on demand clause (1,396) (1,176)
Hin B2 FE ﬁﬁi Interest expense on other borrowings (302) (159)
RERE 2 M EFH Interest element of finance leases (34) (33)
____________ gm0 59
BEKA — 558 Finance costs — net (878) (616)
RBE & «(#%sz/?mﬂﬁﬁjzzﬁﬁs 560,000 Net finance costs relating to discontinued operations amounted to
BT (ZZE— 4 : 5,446,000 7T) ° HK$3,560,000 (2012: HK$5,446,000).
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31 March 2013

11. FEHBMAX 11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
RARIEEREARENIE - FEFEH IR The Company is exempted from taxation in Bermuda. Hong Kong profits
BEBBEMEKZAMEBRRERBELEIR tax has been provided for at the rate of 16.5% (2012: 16.5%) on the
BEEZ AT RN & AMIE16.5% (ZF— = estimated assessable profits arising in or derived from Hong Kong.
F :16.5%) 2 T RIBHAEM o REIPKN Y REE Companies established and operating in Mainland China are subject to
ZATRBHRBMEMGEH  BHER25% (= PRC corporate income tax at the rate of 25% (2012: 25%). Companies
T—ZF:25%) c MRMERAKILREEZ established and operating in Canada are subject to Canadian income tax
RNEDIRBENERFER - HENF25.0%F at rates ranging from 25.0% to 26.5% (2012: 26.1% to 27.8%).
26.5% (ZF—=%F : 26.1% £ 27.8%) °
—E—= —F—=
2013 2012
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$’000
(&E51)
(Restated)
B HTIE Current taxation
— BABMEH — Hong Kong profits tax 521 5083
— FREFEMER — PRC corporate income tax 121 422
— MEXMAEH — Canadian income tax 1,173 1,527
RIETR B = R A E & R E 0 Deferred taxation relating to the origination
(H17#30) and reversal of temporary differences
(Note 30) 113 (486)
1,928 1,966
NEEMGRRANGEN 2 FER - BERABFEZ The taxation on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from the
MEMAE 2B RE ZRE0T theoretical amount that would arise using the Hong Kong profits tax rate
as follows:
—E—= —EF—=
2013 2012
FHET FEr
HK$’000 HK$’000
(&%)
(Restated)
B 756 AT A Profit before income tax 15,832 43,791
TRIEHZ 16.5% Fi Rz & Calculated at taxation rate of 16.5%

—ZT——4F :16.5%) (2012: 16.5%) 2,612 7,226
PRFERZZE Effect of different tax rates 473 945
HARDZ WA Income not subject to tax (3,064) (7,044)
AR 2 T W Expenses not deductible 398 479
RIERZBIIFIBR Tax losses not recognised 1,286 360
Efth Others 223 =
I Taxation charge 1,928 1,966
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12.

EE - THRASRSRTERA 12
S

(a) EERTHARMS

RIB-—=F=A=+—HFAELRA

FEEZMeHT -

EEpE Name of Director

HTES Executive directors
BIBE R (77 #45)  Mr LAU Tak Wan (chief executive)
Bt Ms CHAN Yuen Mei, Pinky
FRIBEE Mr WAN Chor Fai

BEERE(MET)  MrMAK Hon Kai, Stanly (Note 1)
REFEL(HF2)  Mr CHEUNG Wai Ho (Note 2)

BUFHTES Independent non-executive directors
2RAEL Dr Barry John BUTTIFANT

BRAEL Dr LIU Ngai Wing

2L Mr CHOI Yuk Fan

Kieg1: R=E—=F=RA=++tHEEH
TE= -
KtaE2 - E/\\—Tfjifﬂ:thEIZ%%E
RITESE ©

R-E——FER-"ZT—=F=ZA=+—H0F
N FBEEE  THARRSHRITHAE ZM
S EERE BB ECEERN -

31 March 2013

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

The remuneration of each of the directors of the Company for the
year ended 31 March 2013 is set out below:

Bk

FeREE MisieA Contribution
He Salaries and Discretionary to retirement fE
Fees allowances bonuses  benefit scheme Total
FET FiEx TE7r FE7r FET
HK$000 HK$000 HK$7000 HK$’000 HK$000
- 2,502 - 118 2,620
- 853 - 4 894
- 932 - 35 967
- 968 1,812 38 2,818
100 - - - 100
75 - - - 75
50 - - - 50
225 5,255 1,812 232 1,524

Note 1: Resigned as an executive director on 27 March 2013.

Note 2: Appointed as an executive director on 27 March 2013.

During the years ended 31 March 2013 and 2012, directors’, chief
executive’s and senior management’s emoluments were all included in
the Group’s continuing operations.
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31 March 2013

12. EE - THARRSHITHA 12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
B SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

cAC )

(a) EEsMe(E

R-B——F=A=1+—HBHAREEE

EZMEHT ¢

B Name of Director

HITES Executive directors
S|SB R (77 #85)  Mr LAU Tak Wan (chief executive)
BT Ms CHAN Yuen Mei, Pinky
FRIBEE Mr WAN Chor Fai

FEERE Mr MAK Hon Kai, Stanly
BUFHTEE Independent non-executive directors
ZRAET Dr Barry John BUTTIFANT
BRRET Dr LIU Ngai Wing

2L Mr CHOI Yuk Fan

BFEERNAFERERZEETAME
(ZF——F : &) - RAFEREXR
FTREFEMANBEMS AR EEETRM
ZHE(CE-——F:8) BEFHE
BEyRiTEEMERE( T ——4:
&) -
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(continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (continued)

The remuneration of each of the directors of the Company for the
year ended 31 March 2012 is set out below:

Hié R BIRE T

Salaries Mg Contribution
ik and Discretionary to retirement a3
Fees allowances bonuses benefit scheme Total
FAT FET FHET FAT FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
- 3,372 - 158 3,530
- 1,151 - 54 1,205
- 1,123 - 43 1,166
- 1,362 777 63 2,202
100 - - - 100
75 - - - 75
50 - - - 50
225 7,008 777 318 8,328

No director waived any emoluments during the year (2012: Nil).
No emolument was paid to any directors as inducement to join or
as compensation for loss of office during the year (2012: Nil). No
director has been granted or exercised any share option during

the year (2012: Nil).
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AfUREHFAL

rEREEANLERSFNALERED
Z(ZE——ZF:-OR)EF HMg
EHN EXDT - B —R(ZT—Z
F:—RB)EReFALTZHE TN
T

E R Fre K H AR
BB IEAT
BREKRA — EREHEE

1,000,001 /8 7L £ 2,000,000 78 7T

REFERN BEESHFAL(BEE
ERHEMET)  WEEMEMMEHE
RMEMESRAERUAOBECE
——F )

31 March 2013

12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

(continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year include four (2012: four) directors whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above. The
emoluments paid and payable to the remaining one (2012: one)
individual are as follows:

—=F—=

2013 2012
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
Basic salaries and allowances 682 647
Discretionary bonus 384 481
Pension scheme contribution 28 30
1,094 1,168
The emoluments fell within the following band:
A"

Number of individual
—=E—= —_F—=
2013 2012
HK$1,000,001 — HK$2,000,000 1 1

During the year, no emolument was paid to the five highest
paid individuals (including directors and other employees) as
inducement to join or as compensation for loss of office (2012:
Nil).
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13.

REEEE
B8

AEBBETMEATRSAEHRKGE : AFA
BSORIRGT BDADI BB ([HERR G S )) K2
HasrE((RESE D TEARES - BXR
KtgI R Bt cEEREECEED R
FA  BBEVEERESRE -

FERERKTET AREREREE D RIRE
BN BES2RAEBAEK - BEEAKLES
HMABEENEE ZHR - NEEAFIBLE
RERERRZBERKE BEZT—=FRK
T —H=-A=+—HULFER AEEL
RA U Bl R EEZTE T 2 HR - R
T—=F=A=+—H EZFET ZEX
BE B ER 2 SRIA A] A 1EIR 2 PR F AN SR B R kK
2 FIE X 59,000/ (=T — = : 9,000/
JL) °

ERBERTET AEERSEEDRZES
BEABURREFIELABEETEEHZER)
AAZAER  AEBREBE L cHHH R
FARS1,0008 T (—E——FRAA=+—H
2 A EE K& 1,250 (= —=F A —H
g2 BEFE)  BEEABEMMHR - ERESH
KN TR BESFTEIMRAIEEA - BHEM
RSB EERES -

HPE

BRHBUAPIRE - FESTEKREGHES
FE R & B RRE IR - EZETEI T - £ F
LEERERESAEGAAR(BEFHSE - 8
RACAD) HOEFE L HIETR © BRIA LGRS - RE
BEBINEBRBNRR 2 e RAE - itH
ZEBRKE S B B HRKNERRER RN
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13.

31 March 2013

PENSION SCHEMES

Hong Kong

The Group has two defined contribution pension schemes, the retirement
scheme organised under the Hong Kong Occupational Retirement
Schemes Ordinance (“ORSO Scheme”) and the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme”), for its employees in Hong Kong. The
assets of the ORSO Scheme and the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group under independently administered funds.

Under the ORSO Scheme, the Group and each of its employees make
monthly contribution to the scheme of approximately 5% respectively,
of the employees’ salary. The unvested benefits of employees who
have terminated employment are utilised by the Group to reduce its
future contributions. No unvested benefits has been utilised under the
scheme during the years ended 31 March 2013 and 2012. The amount
of unvested benefits as at 31 March 2013 that are available to reduce
the Group’s future contributions was approximately HK$9,000 (2012:
HK$9,000).

Under the MPF Scheme, each of the Group and its employees makes
monthly contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employee’s relevant
income, as defined in the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance.
Both the Group’s and the employee’s contributions are subjected to
a cap of HK$1,000 per month (for periods before 31 May 2012) and
HK$1,250 per month (for periods from 1 June 2012 onwards) and
contributions thereafter are voluntary. The contributions are fully and
immediately vested in the employees.

Mainland China

As stipulated by rules and regulations in Mainland China, the Group
contributes to state-sponsored retirement plans for its relevant
employees in Mainland China. The Group and its relevant employees
make monthly contributions to the plans at the respective statutory rates
on the relevant income (comprising salaries, allowances and bonus).
The Group has no further obligations for the actual payment of post-
retirement benefits beyond its contributions. The state-sponsored
retirement plans are responsible for the entire post-retirement benefits
payable to retired employees.
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15.

NEEFE®
e

AEETFZRNENEEREMZZHE K
TETERENERERERIN - mMEXERR
SFHEI(CPP) & AER - REIZREE A
BREARGEIE 2495% (- F— —4F :495%)
R BEFEERSEMERRSBABTZR
390,000/ st (A& K 51,100 M) (= F — =
£ : 392,000 % 7T (554 50,100 07T )) °

NEEBRBEABRGUEER)

i A

AAREDZFEEARGEBRERAR AP BRE
ABREE#) A199,523,0008 L ( — T — —4F :
% F 16,487,000 L) °

BRI F
(a) HA

BREARNERBEFEAR DR
B AR (ER),JaflR AR R B &#T
TBBIEFIOBHE -

13.

14.

15.

31 March 2013

PENSION SCHEMES (continued)

Canada

The Group is required to make monthly contribution to the National
Canada Pension Plan (“CPP”) in respect of its employees in Canada
based on the relevant employees’ salaries, with the exceptions of certain
excluded employment and benefits, at a rate of 4.95% (2012: 4.95%)
of the employees’ salaries subject to a maximum annual pensionable
earnings of HK$390,000 (equivalent to CAD51,100) (2012: HK$392,000
(equivalent to CAD50,100)).

(LOSS)/PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The loss attributable to equity holders of the Company is dealt with in
the financial statements of the Company to the extent of approximately
HK$199,523,000 (2012: profit of HK$16,487,000).

EARNINGS PER SHARE
(a) Basic
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the (loss)/profit

attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

—E—= —E—=
2013 2012
FHET FET
HK$°000 HK$’000
(&%)
(Restated)
NATIREREE A AL (B18), %% (Loss)/profit attributable to equity holders of
the Company (171,008) 8,786
J0 o ARBEREA AELDRIESZ  Add: Loss from discontinued operations
EEBEE attributable to equity holders of the
Company 184,912 33,039
NATIHERE A AELFEEL XIS Profit from continuing operations attributable
il to equity holders of the Company 13,904 41,825
—E—= —E——
2013 2012
TRRINETHETHE(T) Weighted average number of ordinary shares
in issue ('000) 365,123 331,968
BREARBINCENMER) Basic earnings per share
(rounded to HK cents per share)
— FEBEEEE — Continuing operations 3.81 12.60
— BERIEEEETR — Discontinued operations (50.64) (9.95)
(46.83) 2.65
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16.

31 March 2013

BR=ER =) 15. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)
(b) g (b) Diluted
SAEEREEATE  DHBERITER Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted
Bz inEFEESEL AR - MBRERRE average number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume
HESEE ) 2 RITERREZETHE conversion of all the Company’s outstanding warrants. As at 31
HmoRN=—ZZE—=F=A=+—H ' 88 March 2013, there were no outstanding warrants. For the year
BARITEZ RIEE - —TE——F=H ended 31 March 2012, dilutive earnings per share equal basic
=+—BEEHRE - KTERREZFER earnings per share as the exercise of the outstanding warrants
ERESER  ALLERESRANNEST would be anti-dilutive.
IREARZEFIER -
Gk 16. GOODWILL
—E—= —T—=
2013 2012
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000
DN Cost
iR Beginning of the year 28,625 29,615
EHERR Exchange differences (424) (834)
iR End of the year 28,201 28,781
BE 2 RE A Impairment tests for goodwill

EEDRIEEEDHMERAZAEERSELE
AR - R=F——FRR=_F—=F=H
=t—H BEE2HOERMEREEZEA

BHEREHAH -

BRERN T E - BB E S ERERER
BEE EREEFENERERENRE
R Bt /& RRE B F R M BRRENR SR
EEA - EAFNERZEeRENRTEER
YETRAI -
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Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units identified
according to operating segment. As at 31 March 2012 and 2013, all the
goodwill is allocated to the “Distribution of personal computers” segment
in Canada.

For the purposes of impairment reviews, the recoverable amount of
goodwill is determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations use cash flow projections based on the financial budgets
approved by management for the purposes of impairment reviews
covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated according to a constant-growth assumption.



B 7% 3R N R

—E—=F=H=1+—H

Notes to the Financial Statements

31 March 2013

16. BE») 16. GOODWILL (continuea)

BB ZRENR(EF

ERBEFETEZEERRMT

Impairment tests for goodwill (continued)

The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations are as follows:

mEXEE

Canada

operations

—E—=

2013

FEH = Gross margin 9.53%
ERX Growth rate 1.73% to 2.73%
PrER & (FiRn) Discount rate (pre-tax) 16.22%

BEMNEMNERDNEREREBEREREYHT
BERNPEMETE - MEAMNBREAR L
HERTBBITEBABREE - FIERNSF
IR ABRBA - W E R ERT ST
HREBITENSENRR EEEDZE L
BERGHEE WEER T HREBERE -
WEFMERRDZR02%KERERR D ZR
0.4%  SHTIR S (FLRT) AN Z A 1.35% » P&
BEAFEHEEIRSSLRER RETH
2 TR FTE A B0 E BB SRA AR L HIET
MEEBZNEMESHHAIHZETHLSTER
AEREARTE -

The budgeted gross margin was determined by management based
on past performance and its expectation for market development. The
growth rates used are largely consistent and do not exceed the industry
growth forecast. The annual discount rates are before tax and reflect
market assessments of the time value and the specific risks relating
to the relevant segment. Management has considered the above
assumptions and valuation and has also taken into account the business
plan going forward. If there is a decrease in gross margin or growth rate
by more than 0.2% and 0.4% respectively, or an increase in discount
rate (pre-tax) by more than 1.35%, there would be a shortfall of value-
in-use against the carrying amount of goodwill. Judgment is required to
determine key assumptions adopted in the cash flow projections and
the changes to key assumptions can significantly affect these cash flow
projections.
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17. Y% - BBRRE

%8

R=%--%MmA-B At 1 April 2011

A Cost
ZitiE Accumulated depreciation
EEE Net book amount

—E--fzfA=t-A Year ended 31 March 2012

LFE

BEEFE Opening net book amount
g Bxchange differences
AE Addtions

(& Disposals

k-] Depreciation

WE Impaiment

BRREHE Closing net book amount

RZZ-ZE=A=+-H  At31 March 2012
B Cost
ZHTERAE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment

FEFE Net book amount

aMEEERAERAXA 100
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31 March 2013

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Group
£6 fil
RERRE
Leasehold
BE  improvements,
THREF RERES furniture, EBERIE ERIR
Land and Plant and fixtures and RE Mouldsand  Construction- @it
buildings machinery equipment  Motor vehicles tooling in-progress Total
AT AT A1 A1 AT AT AT
HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
128,698 135,673 49,860 6,932 23,979 21,107 366,249
(21,521) (99,237) (81,207) (4,162) (17,498) - (178,625)
107,177 36,436 18,653 2,770 6,481 21,107 192,624
107,177 36,436 18,653 2,770 6,481 21,107 192,624
44 378 81 4 - - 507
- 9,221 3,503 2,228 207 6,071 21,230
(36,424) (1,118) (4,210) (33) - - (41,785)
(2,535) (5,985) 2,111) (569) (1,116) - (12,316)
- (7,501) (1,083) - (1,782) - (10,266)
68,262 31,481 14,883 4,400 3,840 21178 149,994
77,439 117,646 43,093 8,949 24,186 21178 298,491
(9,177) (86,215) (28,210) (4,549 (20,346) - (148,497)
68,262 31,481 14,883 4,400 3,840 21178 149,994
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17. Y% - #BRRXRE )

SE(E)

ZE-=E=A=1-AILEE Year ended 31 March 2013

BEAFE Opening net book amount
ERER Exchange differences
g% Transfer
SRERENNZ Transfer to investment
(Hi218) properties (Note 18)
HE Adoltions
e Disposals
ik Depreciation
WE Impairment
HERBAT Disposal of subsidlaries
(Wits4) (Note 34)
HREEEE Closing net book amount
WZZE-ZE=A=+-H  At31 March 2013
A Cost
iHTERAE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment
REFE Net book amount

31 March 2013

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

Group (continued)

6 fifl

RERRE

Leasehold

BE  improvements,

1HRET RERHE furniture, BERIE HRBIR

Land and Plant and fixtures and RE Mouldsand ~ Construction- it
buildings machinery equipment  Motor vehicles tooling in-progress Total
AT AT AT AT AT AT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
68,262 31,431 14,883 4,400 3,840 21,178 149,994
6 - 132 2 - = 140
28,158 - - - - (28,158) -
(35,364) - - - - - (35,364)
- 1,195 1,038 - 43 1,290 3,566
(2,361) (1,588) (2,421) (644) - - (7,014)
(1,554) (8,625) (2,047) (788) (1,121) - (14,135)
- (11,262) (4,738) (100) (2,620) - (18,720)
(1,967) - - - - - (1,967)
55,180 11,151 6,847 2,870 142 310 76,500
59.569 106,988 40,555 8,168 24,229 310 239,819
(4,389) (95,837) (33,708) (5,298) (24,087) - (163,319)
55,180 11,151 6,847 2,870 142 310 76,500

R AEIEFEEERRE F et REtt

EEIEBHRIE EREHEENMEYE -

W25 MR B IEE R B PR

HREBEZHEREEBRERIELES

7

P2ETHSBIRRME Bt AT ERKK

ER REEARED

7l 46,756,000 % 7T &

11,964,000 8 T 2 HE A F E | ﬁ@ﬁ%oﬁ

ERIERZXZHEMANBERREDE
RE

BHE-_ZT——F=A=1+—HILFE £5£H
= K 22 1EH 10,266,000 7 TR E#E - 2

D RIS TSR -

During the year, the directors conducted a specific review on all of
the Group’s property, plant and equipment following the discontinued
operations of the “Consumer Electronics and Electronic Components and
Parts Manufacturing” segment.

Consequently, certain machinery and equipment of the Group’s
continuing operations and discontinued operations with a total carrying
amount of HK$6,756,000 and HK$11,964,000 respectively that are
not expected to be redeployed in the future has been fully provided for
during the year. Machinery and equipment in relations to the discontinued
operations are fully impaired.

The provision for impairment of plant and machinery for year ended
31 March 2012 of HK$10,266,000 was all related to the Group’s
discontinued operations.

101 BN EERKRERARAA

Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited



Bt 1% iR R M 5 Notes to the Financial Statements

—F—=F=-H=1—H 31 March 2013
17. Y% - BERRE 2 17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)
BEENTRN TEFEESNEERB D HH Impairment reviews on the remaining machinery and equipment under the
BT R - ECTHEH *ETF@E%HETE Contract Electronic Manufacturing Services segment is also performed
FFEEtEREEENT IO ©%E o szt EF by management. For the purposes of the reviews, the recoverable
ﬁE’gfﬁ@;ﬁ%%ﬁiﬁljEizzﬁ”*kﬁﬁﬁtxﬁﬁﬁirﬁﬁ amounts of the related assets are determined based on value-in-use
HRERFR BUFEHENBREREHRET calculations. These calculations use cash flow projections based on the
BE— A EN—BEROKRE > ENe annual financial budgets approved by management. Cash flows beyond
BRTEERSERRENBRTNERFR - the annual period are extrapolated according to a constant-growth

assumption covering a six-year period which in aggregate represents the
remaining useful lives of major machinery and equipment.

FREEMELTEZEERELT The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations are as follows:
—E2—=
2013
RS Gross margin 15.0%
R = Growth rate 2.0%
IR (FiAn) Discount rate (pre-tax) 15.0%
FEENENRNDEEERBAERBLES M The budgeted gross margin was determined by management based
BEENHEMETE - IERANSERTRXRY on past performance and its expectation for market development. The
BETE > TREEEEENTISEENRER annual discount rates are before tax and reflect market assessments of
TENERRR - BEEBEHE S LiEE/RK the time value and the specific risks relating to the relevant segment.
FHERAEBENEREHUYTITSSHEEEEDN Management believes that any reasonably foreseeable change in any of
EEEBEATKENESE NETHESRER the above key assumptions would not cause the carrying amounts of the
H|J)5ﬁ}7,<ﬁ HWErEREEAELHE  MEER related assets to exceed the recoverable amount. Judgment is required
N EAEES YR HZER S RETEAIERKE to determine key assumptions adopted in the cash flow projections and
R E o the changes to key assumptions can significantly affect these cash flow
projections.
T REFREFES AT Net book value of the land and buildings is analysed as follows:
—E—= —E——
2013 2012
FET FAET
HK$°000 HK$’000
MREB 2 T RIEF ¢ Land and buildings held in Hong Kong on:
10E50F 2 2 EF Leases of between 10 and 50 years 5,193 7,459
MR BB LAIMEE Z ETF : Buildings held outside Hong Kong on:
10E50F 24 Leases of between 10 and 50 years 49,987 60,044
50F A E 2L Leases of over 50 years - 759
55,180 68,262
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—E—=F=H=1+—H

17. Y% > B RXRE 17.

REFELANFTEBERMENT

31 March 2013

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

Depreciation expense incurred during the year is attributable to the
following:

—EB—= —ZE—=

2013 2012
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
FREICE X5 Continuing operations

— SHERA — Cost of sales 2,743 2,341

— —MERTEAX — General and administrative
expenses 3,228 4,332
5,971 6,673
BRI EETS Discontinued operations 8,164 5,643
TEBERBE Total depreciation expense 14,135 12,316

AEREEBFEFNEL EZBMNE @ FHEHAR
Mizr2.1 k2.7 o

REZZE—=F=A=+—H  UREBNUIM
BzEFFEREEC NP EAERERE TR
M2 mE RE TRRTEAENRTE -

RZFE—=F=A=1+—H BHEXREER
Ry RHE MR RS BB M EAREE - AREN T
i RAE T (5 L i R4 ) (R M EE 19) /9
NT{E# 166,091,000 7T ©

There is a change in depreciation method during the year, details of
which are set out in Notes 2.1 and 2.7.

As at 31 March 2018, buildings held outside Hong Kong mainly represent
the Group’s factory premises located at Heyuan, Guangdong Province of
Mainland China, and certain office premises located in Mainland China.

As at 31 March 2013, the fair value of the land and building portion, and
the relevant land use rights set out in Note 19, valued by a professional
and qualified valuer based on current market prices in an active market,
amounted to approximately HK$166,091,000.
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—E—=F=H=1+—H 31 March 2013
18. REWHE 18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
SEIT : Movements were:
FAET
HK$’000
R=ZFE——FMHA—HBK At 1 April 2011 and 31 March 2012
—T——%=H=+—H
PR AR Cost _
ZEHE Accumulated depreciation —
BREDFE Net book amount —
T =F=A=t+—HILEFE Year ended 31 March 2013
HRWIARE B Opening net book amount =
R - WRRREER(HF17) Transfer from property, plant and equipment (Note 17) 35,364
HACR AR SHE Closing net book amount 35,364
RZT—=F=A=+—H At 31 March 2013
AR Cost 38,651
BEiTE Accumulated depreciation (3,287)
BREDFE Net book amount 35,364
KEMERTFESTAT : Net book value of investment properties is analysed as follows:
—E—= —F—=
2013 2012
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
R B AINBE 2 Investment properties held outside
TEYE - Hong Kong on:
10E50F 24 Leases of between 10 and 50 years 35,208 =
50F A EZ A Leases of over 50 years 156 -
35,364 —
RZZT—=F=F=+—H8 REME(BEE As at 31 March 2013, the fair value of the investment property, including
FHOREBLMERE)ZATE  FER the building portion and the relevant land use rights, valued by a
BERKFTEMBRRIERMS 2 REMISE professional and qualified valuer based on current market prices in an
1% - B{EAI(E 79,759,000 BT active market, amounted to approximately HK$79,759,000.
aNMEmEERERAA 104
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19.

T 3t fiF F #E

31 March 2013

19. LAND USE RIGHTS

SEMHEL W THFEREATENEERE The Group’s interests in land use rights represent prepaid operating

MR- BREDFES T

ZHNEERTZFZAREEEL -

lease payments and their net book amounts are analysed as follows:

—E—-= —F—=
2013 2012
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$’000
R-BE——F-E——FMWA—H At 1 April 2012/2011
&N Cost 18,381 25,700
ER RS Accumulated amortisation (7,807) (9,762)
BRmEFE Net book amount 10,574 15,938
HAWIARE B Opening net book amount 10,574 15,938
B Amortisation (360) (402)
HE Disposal - (4,962)
LEMRBRR(HF34) Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 34) (566) —
R ARTEDSHE Closing net book amount 9,648 10,574
R-E—=Fg-Z2—_-—F=H=+—H At 31 March 2013/2012
DN Cost 17,738 18,381
E g Accumulated amortisation (8,090) (7,807)
BREDFE Net book amount 9,648 10,574
HE R - Geographical analysis:
—E—= —_Zz—=
2013 2012
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
R BEBAIMEE Outside Hong Kong, held on:
10250 F 247 Leases of between 10 and 50 years 9,503 10,403
50F LA EZ 4T Leases of over 50 years 145 171
9,648 10,674
RZE—=F=A=+—H UREHEZHE As at 31 March 2013, the remaining period of unexpired leases of
TH MR = TOF 2 REHBAL - RZT—= leasehold land in Hong Kong is 34 years. As at 31 March 2013, the
F=A=+—H NRFEHEE I HER remaining period of unexpired land use rights in the PRC ranged from 29

to 52 years.
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—E—=F=H=1+—H

20. HEFREE

R=Z2——FMA—H
B
Rt LRE

AREHE

—E--—f=A=+—H
ILEE

H ¥ AR EDFE

B

BRmEFE
R-EB——H=A=+—H
B AN

2t R RE

AREHE

—®-=f=A=+-A8
IFE

HAPIRR A

B35

AR

AREHE
R=2-—=%5=A=t+—H
B

Rt KRE

AREHE

EERMZBARBRASEERERERKSR
B YERERAFREFEHRE - EERME

SHFER RIHERA
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20. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

At 1 April 2011
Cost
Accumulated amortisation
and impairment

Net book amount

Year ended 31 March 2012

Opening net book amount
Amortisation

Net book amount
At 31 March 2012
Cost
Accumulated amortisation
and impairment
Net book amount
Year ended 31 March 2013
Opening net book amount
Amortisation
Impairment
Net book amount
At 31 March 2013
Cost
Accumulated amortisation

and impairment

Net book amount

31 March 2013

EERM &S
Technical Club #at
know-how debentures Total
FET FAET FAET
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
4,497 1,050 5,547
(1,124) (840) (1,464)
3,373 710 4,083
3,373 710 4,083
(1,124) — (1,124)
2,249 710 2,959
4,497 1,050 5,547
(2,248) (840) (2,588)
2,249 710 2,959
2,249 710 2,959
(1,124) - (1,124)
(1,125) - (1,125)
- 710 710
4,497 1,050 5,547
(4,497) (340) (4,837)
- 710 710

The entire balance of technical known-how is related to the Group’s
discontinued operations and has been impaired during the year.

Amortisation of technical know-how is recognised in cost of sales.
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21.

31 March 2013

&
13
[
|
e
B

21. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATED COMPANY

&8
Group
—E—= —F——
2013 2012
FHET FET
HK$°000 HK$’000
DN Cost 2,519 2,519
BB Provision for impairment (2,519) (2,519)
BREDFE Net book amount = =
R BZARRK REE 2 & R R BENAT Details of the associated company, which is a limited liability company
established and operating in Japan, are as follows:
BRAERES
ERTRBRER BoLLEERE
Issued and Percentage
%1 fully paid of equity FEEK
Name up capital interest held Principal activity
AMEZERA SHt 23,400,000 H 47% SHE REE, B 2R ERB) o 2B Rt e 1
Daiwa Sound Company Limited YEN23,400,000 Trading and manufacturing of speaker
elements and components
AL E A RBTAFRERHERSE  Bit The interest in associated company is fully impaired due to its continuous
ZEP D S ER ERE R - loss suffered in previous and recent years.
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—F—-Z-H-F-H 31 March 2013
22, MHHELREE 22. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS
£@
Group
—E—= —EF—=
2013 2012
FAET FEr
HK$’000 HK$’000
H3%7 Beginning of the year 14,759 387
B A4 0 Additions during the year - 15,307
Wz, (B518) FEE A Net gain/(loss) transferred to equity 377 (935)
AR End of the year 15,136 14,759
A ESREERE Available-for-sale financial assets include the following:
=5
Group
—E—= T
2013 2012
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
EmES Listed securities:
fRiEFES — BB - UBTA Equity securities — Hong Kong, denominated in
BAL HK$ 328 302
SEERERR : Key management insurance:
REEE L BREE - AETR Account value of the insurance contract,
=LV denominated in US$ 14,808 14,457
15,136 14,759
Lm#ESHEMISEE Market value of listed securities 328 302
REE—=FfKk-"ZT——F=fA=+—0B & At 31 March 2013 and 2012, the fair value of key management insurance
ZERERBRZAABILREBEAREE - £H is determined based on the account value. The key management
EIEEZERERRBRERTRT  UWEREE insurance is pledged as collateral for the Group’s borrowings amounting
13,665,000 70 (= T — = F : 14,416,000 % to approximately HK$13,665,000 (2012: HK$14,416,000) (Note 27).

TEEE(MR27) -
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23.

31 March 2013

A 23. INVENTORIES
£8
Group
—E—-= —_F—=
2013 2012
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$’000
BmEE Trading merchandise 71,049 132,780
JR# Raw materials 46,879 116,021
E& M Work-in-progress 3,922 7,442
UK i Finished goods 25,098 7,740
FE — @5 Inventories — gross 146,948 263,983
FEREER Provision for impairment (48,917) (1,997)
TE — #E Inventories — net 98,031 261,986
i3 Note:

(ii)

(il

(iv)

SEZEBECEERRERIEEEERZE
FRASABRARBEEHERAFHRINE
456,544,000 78 7T (—Z — — 4 : 527,055,000
7 7T ) & 454,959,000/ Jo(= T — — 4 ¢
675,277,000 7T) °

HA FRERIEKEEB ZETRHEA
72,457,000 BT (=T —=F : T) »

The cost of inventories recognised as expenses and included in cost of
sales attributable to the Group’s continuing and discontinued operations
amounted to approximately HK$456,544,000 (2012: HK$527,055,000) and
HK$454,959,000 (2012: HK$675,277,000) respectively.

During the year, inventories related to discontinued operations of
approximately HK$72,457,000 (2012: Nil) in total have been written off.

GFERHEZSHWMT - (iii) Movement in the provision for inventories is as follows:
Group

—=E—= —ZF——
2013 2012
FET FETL
HK$’000 HK$'000
REA—H At 1 April 1,997 2,524
TFERERE Provision for inventory impairment 47,723 1,458
TN A R 8 Write-off against provision (803) (1,985)
R=A=+—H At 31 March 48,917 1,997

R-ZE—=F-A=+—HALFEHH &
EERICEEBRFECEEBRERZ
= &R E EE D B & 46,820,000 8 (=&
— =% : T)K903,000BL(=F—=F :
1,458,000/87T) °

R-ZTE—=F=ZA=+—H8 ' 56ERH
EEECERZAMGFERAFENR
10,123,000 B (= F—=4F : T) - A%
EGEEENEERBHELEE -

(iv)

During the year ended 31 March 2013, provision for inventory impairment
in respect of the Group’s discontinued operations and continuing
operations amounted to HK$46,820,000 (2012: Nil) and HK$903,000
(2012: HK$1,458,000) respectively.

As at 31 March 2013, net carrying amounts of trading merchandise of
approximately HK$10,123,000 (2012: Nil) were held on consignment at the
purchaser of the disposal group. All these items are sold subsequent to
the balance sheet date.
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24, EWEXREBEREWEE 24.

P R ERIA

B ¢ R E EIRTARE R

FEWE IR Notes receivable
Wiz -
(a) AEEZEREERBEZREENTY &%
BENL
BT HK$
AR RMB
7T Uss$
nEKXT CAD

FEY S S ARTAE B R E AP ERE -

KEZEPREZIA  FItEKERRAY
BEETOEERR -

aNEEERAERAA
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Trade receivables
Less: provision for impairment

31 March 2013

TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES

£5

Group
—E—= —EF—=
2013 2012
FHET FET
HK$°000 HK$’000
109,908 186,895
(22,075) (2,015)
87,833 184,880
7,365 22,629
95,198 207,509

Note:
(a) The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are denominated in
the following currencies:
£8
Group

—r—= —F—
2013 2012
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
19,770 39,700
24,587 43,933
42,226 81,875
23,325 21,387
109,908 186,895

The carrying amounts of trade receivables approximate their fair values.

There is no concentration of credit risk with respect to trade receivables as
customer base is widely dispersed.
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24, EWEXREREREE#)

Hiet - (&)

(b)

AEBZ RN HERTERS  RE—R
H=tRENTR - BREXRAZA B
ERERHPZRESNOT

R-T—=F#=A=+—H8' A5
52,593,000 T 2 R & ¥ RIE( =T —=
£ : 87,232,000 7t ) 4% B 380 HA 18 37 & R Rk
o WERIES RS ERIRE M RIERCEE
HBUREF o WEEERUGKIRE SR
RBRER DATLAT ¢

TSR EN R EXRANEEES
TEBRSERME TR L ENBEERE
TRERZEREERARBNEEZE - REYH
77 B E I EHERFOER

24,

31 March 2013

TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES (continued)

Note: (continued)

(b)

Less than 60 days
60 days to 120 days
QOver 120 days

Less than 60 days
60 days to 120 days
Over 120 days

Majority of the Group’s sales are made on open account, with credit terms
generally ranged from 30 days to 90 days. The ageing analysis of trade
receivables by the dates on which the relevant sales were made is as
follows:

£5

Group
—=E—= —ZF——
2013 2012
FET TFET
HK$°000 HK$’000
60,746 127,438
20,279 22,465
28,883 36,992
109,908 186,895

At 31 March 2013, trade receivables of approximately HK$52,593,000
(2012: HK$87,232,000) were past due but not considered to be impaired
because these mainly relate to a number of independent customers for
whom there is no recent history of default. The ageing analysis of these
trade receivables by the days of overdue repayment is as follows:

&=
Group

-z—= —F—=
2013 2012
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$°000
43,618 45,742
3,901 10,010
5,074 31,480
52,593 87,232

The credit quality of trade receivables neither past due nor impaired
has been assessed by reference to historical information about the
counterparty default rates and taking into account the credit insurance
coverage. The existing counterparties do not have significant defaults in
the past.

1M1 AN EERERAR2A
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24, BEWEX£REREREZE »
HiaE - (&)

R-ZB-—=F=A=1+—R BREXKE
22,075,000/ 7L(=F — =4 : 2,015,0007%
TR AT A A B RE R R BER ©
1EEIJ;W1EE'UEM&§AI£XEFWE%JDMI\@
ERFEFNES o LERUGRRERERNT

31 March 2013

24. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES (continued)

Note: (continued)

At 31 March 2013, trade receivables of approximately HK$22,075,000
(2012: HK$2,015,000) were impaired and fully provided for. The individually
impaired receivables mainly relate to customers who are in unexpected
difficult economic situations. The ageing of these receivables is as follows:

Group
—E-= —F—=
2013 2012
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$’000
BR-—BA=tX Over 120 days 22,075 2,015
(c) FEUG & X EETE R ERENEEF W T (c) Movement in the provision for trade receivables is as follows:
£m
Group
—E—= —ZF—
2013 2012
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$’000
REA—H At 1 April 2,015 2,447
FEUN & 2R TR R B RS Provision for impairment of trade receivables 30,836 604
F NI AR BEUE] Y FE U 5 B T8 il 8 Receivables written off during the year as uncollectable (9,975) (1,036)
HEHTE A A Disposal of subsidiaries (801) =
R=A=+—8” At 31 March 22,075 2,015

BHE-Z—=F=A=1+—H0 SEHEKL
BEBRER LSRR 2 RS R
BEEED B A275,0008 (=T — =4 :
418,000/ 7t ) % 30,561,000/ JL( =& — =
£ : 186,000/ 7T) °

(d) R-ZT—=F=A=+—8 EREXKHE (d)
B3 & £ E 42,370,000 Tt(Z T — =
F: &) BRBeTHZBHEERRASE
BEER  FEHNRKES4 - FFAEZSEK
SEEBDREERZKE o

(e) EHRE (e)

BREIBHAE  BRREZEEENESRH
HAFE R-_FB—=F=A=+—BFA
BB EHAE=5% LA BRRTER
MEHERAZHAAB180RA(ZE——4F :
120RA) « EEHEBEHAARE -

EMEEERERRQA 112
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During the year ended 31 March 2013, provision for impairment
of HK$275,000 (2012: HK$418,000) and HK$30,561,000 (2012:
HK$186,000) was recognised for the Group’s continuing operations and
discontinued operations respectively.

As at 31 March 2013, trade receivables included an amount of
approximately HK$2,370,000 (2012: Nil) relating to the disposal group
for which the credit risks have not been transferred to the purchaser
as a result of the retention arrangement detailed in Note 34. All these
receivables are subsequently settled after the balance sheet date.

Notes receivable

The carrying amounts of notes receivable approximate their fair values
due to their short maturity. As at 31 March 2013, all the notes receivable
represent bank acceptance notes issued by third parties with average
original maturity of within 180 days (2012: 120 days), which are
denominated in RMB.
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25.

26.

%ﬁﬁﬁ‘$$&E@EWﬁ 25.
I

31 March 2013

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

mEp Current:
TETRIE Prepayments
HEZS Rental deposits
H A e I GRIE Other receivables
FETED Non-current:
EFEREERS Prepayments and

b

rental deposits

Total

HERZUABEREREHN B TEERKLE

b= E R

RERRESEY

RITHERR
Be b

Cash at banks
Cash on hand

ReRReEBMWATIER RER

BT
ARE
X
MmERT
Hits

HK$
RMB
uss$
CAD
Others

&= AT

Group Company
—E—= —EF—— —_Eg—= —E——
2013 2012 2013 2012
FET FET FETT FET
HK$°000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
2,331 15,500 157 161
70 17 - =
16,886 18,855 - —
19,287 34,372 1567 161
363 621 - —
19,650 34,993 157 161

Other receivables mainly included rebate receivables, advance to

employees and other receivables arising from operations.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

&= AF
Group Company

—E—= —F—= —E—= T
2013 2012 2013 2012
FET FAT FHET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
55,084 100,485 166 81
5,076 4,959 - —
60,160 105,444 166 81

Cash and cash equivalents are denominated

in the following currencies:

£H AT

Group Company
—Eg2—= —F—= —E—= —F——
2013 2012 2013 2012
FET FET FETT FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
18,553 23,676 166 81
25,058 40,928 - —
7,914 30,881 — —
8,398 9,888 — —
237 71 - —
60,160 105,444 166 81

113
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26. BERBEEEN»

RITFEFIRE T B RIT1F 2% B F == FREX A
BHA - REZRITERTOAREEFREE
BERRETBERARRT - EEANAR
W BN 3 3 e PE SR - 9 R AR R T B BT R S

26.

31 March 2013

CASH AND CASH EQU'VALENTS (continued)

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank

deposit rates. The Group’s cash and bank balances denominated in

RMB are deposited with banks in the Mainland China. The conversion

of these RMB-denominated balances into foreign currencies and the

FEFRTE © remittance of funds out of Mainland China is subject to the rules and
regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the Government
of the People’s Republic of China.

27. BE& 27. BORROWINGS
£5
Group
—E2—-= —EF——
2013 2012
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
) Current
EHRITER Short-term bank borrowings 8,000 19,430
IRITIEEER Trust receipts bank loans 53,940 167,473
BEBRRANEFER —FARNEZ Portion of bank borrowings repayable within one
IRITER year under the original repayment schedule 14,690 18,479
BRI R E K GT 8B —F1& 5 5 Portion of bank borrowings due for repayment after
REBERERERZIBRITER one year under the original repayment schedule
which contains a repayment on demand clause 30,276 49,424
HALER Other borrowings 6,125 3,242
RERSAE Finance lease liabilities 916 1,136
113,947 259,184
FEMED Non-current
R —FRIEz Portion of other borrowings repayable after one
HAaER year - 6,211
AEASAE Finance lease liabilities 321 1,250
321 7,461
ek Total 114,268 266,645

BE-_Z—=F=FA=+—H ' —S#%3IHK
HERERERZIRITEF A 30,276,000/5 7T
TE— 4 149,424,000/ 7T) * 2

BHEE-

aEMEEERAERAA 114
Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited

DR

liabilities.

As at 31 March 2013, bank borrowings of approximately HK30,276,000
(2012: HK$49,424,000) due for repayment after one year are subject
to repayment on demand clause and had been classified as current
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== 31 March 2013
27. B&» 27. BORROWINGS (continued)

ETNERRERERNEXRAEERE TE Disregarding the repayment on demand clause and taking into account

REEMBEVEER - EERHBERNT - the possible demand for immediate repayment due to the breach of

covenants of certain borrowings, the maturity of borrowings is as follows:

£8
Group
—E—= —F—=
2013 2012
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
—FR - BERANEFGTEEL2E Within 1 year, with reference to the repayment

schedule 10,043 209,760

—ER - BREERBITAE 2% Within 1 year, related to borrowings with breached
#HERER covenants 90,989 —
—FEEFR Between 1 and 2 years 1,069 21,452
—EEREA Between 2 and 5 years 2,247 24,762
AELAE Over 5 years 9,920 10,671
114,268 266,645

REETETFASENRITIRERTE &
@28 FEEFEE R 280,000,0007 7T
% 350,000,000 L 2 B(=ZZE —=ZF: K
£ BB & E % E & 1 300,000,000/ 7t &
350,000,000 L2 M) - AEEREBEE_-T
—=F=A=t+-BLEFEARR=ZT—=
FZRA=+—HERETRITBREZR#HR
TE o REZEFRITZRE R /127,927,000 7
JL © 290,989,000 B TER=E—=F=A
=t+—B&HA - RELAB%  AEECIER
RS Lﬁﬁﬁax Eﬁﬁﬁ?ﬂggm,am,ooo%
T2 EZHEREZ IR R

Pursuant to the terms set out in certain banking facilities granted
to the Group, the tangible net worth of the Group should not be
less than a range from HK$280,000,000 to HK$350,000,000 (2012:
tangible net worth of the Group should not be less than a range from
HK$300,000,000 to HK$350,000,000). The Group breached such
covenant requirement during the year and as at 31 March 2013. The
facilities from the banks were approximately HK$127,927,000, of which
HK$90,989,000 had been utilised as at 31 March 2013. Subsequent
to the year end, the Group had obtained one-off waivers from strict
compliance with the covenant requirements in relation to the outstanding
bank borrowings of HK$84,864,000.

15 AN EEREAERA2A
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27. 8w 27.

EERMEERIA T EEAEK :

I HK$
T us$
ARE RMB
NEFEB SEEFHRIBHEE - HMET
BHEEMT :

RITIETLER Trust receipt bank loans
B8 Borrowings
MEHEEBE Finance lease liabilities

RTREHEBEREE - #£20413,665,000
BIL(ZZT——4F : 14,416,000/ TL ) 2 EEE
BERBRBEATHEESREE(FBEHNA
MR R MTsE 22) fEIE N - FTAEBER REIE
o

aMEEERAERRAA 116
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31 March 2013

BORROWINGS (continued)

The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in the following

currencies:
&£H

Group
—E—= —EF—=
2013 2012
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
76,241 130,666
38,027 133,335
- 2,644
114,268 266,645

The Group’s borrowings are all subject to floating interest rates and the
weighted average effective interest rates at the balance sheet date are as
follows:

—EF—= —F—=
2013 2012
B E BT ES
HK$ uss HK$ Us$
2.50% 2.50% 2.20% 2.20%
2.01% 0.93% 2.59% 1.07%
1.73% - 1.82% —

Except for the Group’s finance lease liabilities, and its borrowings of
approximately HK$13,665,000 (2012: HK$14,416,000) secured by the
key management insurance contract classified as available-for-sale
financial assets (Note 22), all other borrowings are unsecured.
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27. 8w

31 March 2013

27. BORROWINGS (continued)

R-E—=FR-_FT——F=A=+—H" As at 31 March 2013 and 2012, the carrying amounts of borrowings

BEFERMERXFERLT -

SEREREAEREINET

REHEET AR
- —FR
— —¥EZ0FRN

B RREME 2 RIS E A

REMERGEMNBREINNOT :

—F R
—FERFA

approximate their fair values.

The Group’s finance lease obligations were analysed as follows:

%£H
Group
—E—= T
2013 2012
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$’000
Total minimum lease payments
— Within one year 929 1,169
— Between two and five years 322 1,266
1,251 2,435
Less: Future finance charges (15) (49)
1,236 2,386

The present value of finance lease liabilities is analysed as follows:

&£H5

Group
—E2—= —F—=
2013 2012
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$’000
Within one year 916 1,136
Between two and five years 321 1,250
1,237 2,386

M7 AN EERERARAA
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31 March 2013

28. FEEXIRE 28. TRADE PAYABLES
ABREEHALERS ' BRPE—KB=1+X Payment terms with majority of the suppliers are on open account.
ERTKe Certain suppliers grant credit period ranging from 30 to 60 days.
FEEERIBZBRESTAT ¢ The ageing analysis of trade payables is as follows:
£8
Group
—E—= —F—=
2013 2012
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
20 VA N Less than 60 days 52,378 136,466
ATRE—BZTX 60 days to 120 days 8,527 4,602
HBBA—A=TX Over 120 days 4,520 2,312
65,425 143,380
JES & SERIBIZIA T EBE AR ¢ Trade payables are denominated in the following currencies:
55
Group
—E—= —EF—=
2013 2012
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT HK$ 11,574 28,904
AR RMB 10,936 13,444
£ Us$ 35,705 94,388
meXT CAD 7,210 6,644
65,425 143,380

aNEEERAERAA

Daiwa A&souate Holdings Limited
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29.

30.

FEAS 8 A e Lt B Y RROR

e s RAEAT

LGN
ENEEER

FEfS3ESEE A

HENBARERRES
ZHEZ R 3R
(H17#34)

Hfth AR

WAL 1S B

Accrued salaries and
bonuses

Receipts in advance

Accrued operating
expenses

Construction fee
payables

Payables relating to
retention arrangement
for disposal of
subsidiaries (Note 34)

Other payables

30.

BERZEEMNABREHREERREHIAR
R - MRERIRY MR — B B - Al
ARRERSHEERREMSHARERE
He AHEERBER L& REEEZE

fHROT -

BEEHREE

BEEHBAAE

BEEH A AR FRE

31 March 2013

ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

-3 AT

Group Company
—E2—= —F— —E2—= ===
2013 2012 2013 2012
FET FET FHET FET
HK$°000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
5,700 11,116 — _
2,690 6,030 - =
9,619 7,063 295 196
386 389 - =
25,293 — - =
568 1,305 - —
44,256 25,9083 295 196

DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a

legally enforceable right to offset current income tax assets against

current income tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate

to the same fiscal authority. The balances shown in the consolidated

balance sheet are, after appropriate offsetting, as follows:

Deferred income tax assets

Deferred income tax liabilities

Net deferred income tax liabilities

£H

Group
—E—= —_ZF—=
2013 2012
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$’000
- 514
(253) (1,652)
(253) (1,138)

119
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30. ELEFREH =)

31 March 2013

EEHAFEZBINT

30. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

The movement on net deferred income tax is as follows:

£H
Group

—E—= —EF—=

2013 2012

FAET FEr

HK$’000 HK$’000

H3%7 Beginning of the year (1,138) (799)
ERER ()RR (Charged)/credited to the income statement

— BEEEEE (M 11) — Continuing operations (Note 11) (113) 486

— BRIEEE T — Discontinued operations 998 (825)

885 (339)

AR End of the year (253) (1,138)

FREEHREERAE 2 EF (R — B
&7 AEER AT AT

The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities prior to offsetting of
balances within the same taxation jurisdiction is as follows:

ELEBIEEE Deferred tax assets
#HiE
Tax losses

—g-= S
2013 2012
FET FET

HK$°000 HK$’000

H397 Beginning of the year 1,642 2,123

FERER ()R (Charged)/credited to the income statement

— FBEREER — Continuing operations (488) 348
— BRI EET — Discontinued operations (1,000) (829)
(1,488) (481)

LEFS End of the year 154 1,642

aMEEERAERAXA 120
Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited
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30.

AY VA L
ELEFREB e
ELEBEARS
R A—H At 1 April
TEHER TR Credited to the income
statement
— BEBCEER — Continuing
operations
— BARIHEE TS — Discontinued
operations

R=A=+—H At 31 March

B IE R T A B T E R 5 2K 1] Bt £E R AR B s A
MEEMNERBEENZ AR LAIEER
BEBEER ASETERZRFAFHIEBED
220,004,000 jo(= T — = 4 : 88,379,000
78570 ) HERRIE IE T IE & EE 49 50,653,000 7 7T (=
T — 4 : 21,207,000/ 7L ) - L EFIEEIE
AHEEK RN ERT &N - RZTE—=F=
A=+—H " R #EEEH 168,851,000
TR T 2T tFHMERC
T — 4 77,934,000 TR - E——&=F
—/NEHAREM) ¢ e T Bl 0] 4 PR HA 4K 85 15 2Rk
2 ERBLRF o

31 March 2013

30. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continueq)

Deferred tax liabilities

MEHRBEHTE
Mg HE Accelerated tax wmE
Withholding tax depreciation Total
—E—= —F—= —ZE—= —F—= —E2—= —F—=
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

FET TIETT FET T/ FET TET
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$’000  HK$'000  HK$’000  HK$'000

1,032 1,032 1,748 1,890 2,780 2,922
— = (375) (138) (375) (138)
(1,032) = (966) (4) (1,998) )
(1,032) = (1,341) (142) (2,373) (142)
— 1,032 407 1,748 407 2,780

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry-forwards to
the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit through the future
taxable profits is probable. The Group did not recognise deferred income
tax assets of approximately HK$50,653,000 (2012: HK$21,207,000)
in respect of accumulated losses amounting to approximately
HK$220,004,000 (2012: HK$88,379,000) that can be carried forward
against future taxable income. As at 31 March 2013, accumulated tax
loss amounting to approximately HK$168,851,000 are expiring in 2013
to 2017 (2012: approximately HK$77,934,000, expiring in 2012 to 2016),
while the remaining balance can be carried forward indefinitely to offset
against future taxable income.

121 eNEmEERAER QA
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31. B& 31.

JERE ¢ Authorised:

LEREREEO0.10
BT
BETRAR Issued and fully paid:

Ak EREEO0.10

BIT
A% Beginning of the year
1T R FE R T 21T HY AR Issue of shares upon exercise of
B (K1) warrants (Note i)
BATHARIT IR (K2t i) Issue of shares from rights issue
(Note ii)
HiR End of the year
Htat - Note:
(i) RZE—=F=A=+—HAKHH  £EL (i)
1T E R ARRERE ©
RBE-T——F=A=1+—RHIEFE ' #
11,446,186 X B A AE B 4 17 6+ AR B
11,446,186 i% i% 17 + 4 KX {B 49 & 4,579,000
BTT °
(ii) BN SEETTHER  UITEREC2ET (ii)

AT 778,847,889 LMD o A )
[l 1t A% M B % 15 &) 7K 18 7% #8743 15,770,000
77T % 7,885,000 7T A BR B IR AN #4158
7,038,000 7T (1 kr 847,000 B T H £ & H
&) AR ARDEE

aMNEEERAERAA 122
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31 March 2013

SHARE CAPITAL

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

—E—= —EF—=
2013 2012

R EE HE Sk e HE
Number of Nominal Number of Nominal
shares value shares value
FRFR FET FHR TR FET
’000 HK$’000 ‘000 HK$'000
1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 100,000
315,390 31,539 303,944 30,394
- - 11,446 1,145
78,848 7,885 — —
394,238 39,424 315,390 31,539

As at 31 March 2013 and during the year then ended, the Group did not
have any outstanding warrants.

During the year ended 31 March 2012, a total of 11,446,186 warrants
were utilised to subscribe for 11,446,186 ordinary shares in the Company
at an aggregate consideration of approximately HK$4,579,000.

During the year, 78,847,889 ordinary shares were issued at the
subscription price of $0.2 each by way of rights issue. The gross proceeds
received by the Company from the rights issue were HK$15,770,000,
among which HK$7,885,000 was credited to the share capital account
and the balance of HK$7,038,000 (net of professional fees of HK$847,000)
was credited to the share premium account.
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—E—=F=H=1+—H 31 March 2013
32. f#& 32. RESERVES
(a) £5 (a) Group
e
SREE
EfifRE
Available- REER/
BARE % EERE for-sale (BSER)
(Hi i) BERE (i (ii) financial Retained
Capital Capital RafkE Statutory assets earnings/
reserve redemption Exchange reserve revaluation  (accumulated L
(Note i) reserve reserve (Note ii) reserve losses) Total
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZZE——F As 1 April 2012
MA—-H 41,201 1,402 11,728 90 (690) 74,769 128,500
KrEEBR Loss for the year - - - - - (171,008) (171,008)
ShEmE Currency translation
differences - - (1,938) - - - (1,938)
MEHESBEE  Impaiment of
i available-for-sale
financial assets - - - - 225 - 225
HEMBAFANE  Release of exchange
LR reserve upon
disposal of
subsidiaries = = (8,403) = = = (8,403)
AHHESEEE  Fairvalue gains on
ATENE available-for-sale
financial assets - - - - 317 - 317
R-E-=F At 31 March 2013
ZA=1-A 41,201 1,402 1,387 90 (88) (96,239) (52,247)

123 eNEmEERAER QA
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31 March 2013

32. &= 32. RESERVES
(a) £@(E) (a) Group
e
SREE
BfhRfE
Available-
EARE g% EERE for-sale
(HIEE () BEfE (Kt (i) financial
Capital Capital RaRE Statutory assets REBEF
reserve redemption Exchange reserve revaluation Retained b
(Note i) reserve reserve (Note ii) reserve earnings Total
FET FET FE7 FET FET FET T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZB——F As 1 April 2011
mA—-A 41,201 1,402 13,584 90 245 69,137 125,609
RERET Profit for the year - - - - - 8,786 8,786
IERE Currency translation
differences - - (1,806) - - - (1,806)
UEHESFHEE  Fair value losses on
ATEEE avallable-for-sale
financial assets - - - - (935) - (935)
50 Dividend - - - - - (8,154) (8,154)
W=B-——F At 31 March 2012
=A=1-H 41,201 1,402 11,728 90 (690) 74,769 128,500
HiaF - Notes:

(i) REBZERFEERADNREITZ
BOBEERER-—ANENFEE
BHEETAQRRNNE AR RKRA
AEMEZZ8  MER=ZTZTZT
F=A=+—BHERFEANEHIR
A% 75 TH 1B M EE A #9 & 4 51,594,000
BIT °

(ii) AR B K BE 2 B R R 2 A B AR
WA AREHARZ BRI M
B o

aEMEEERAERAA 124
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(i

Capital reserve of the

2000.

Group represents the difference between the
nominal amount of the share capital issued by the Company and the
nominal amount of the share capital of the subsidiaries transferred to
the Company pursuant to a group reorganisation in 1994, plus the credit
of HK$51,594,000 from share capital as a result of a reduction of the
Company’s share capital took place during the year ended 31 March

Statutory reserve of a subsidiary in Mainland China can be utilised to offset
future losses or increase the capital of the subsidiary.
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32. f#fE= 32.
b) EAF

R-E——F At 1 April 2012
mA—H

AEEEIE Loss for the year

R-ZB—=% At 31 March 2013
=BA=+-—8H

RZZT——F At 1 April 2011
mA—H

A i Profit for the year

R=-E——F At 31 March 2012
=A=t+—H

(i)

ARBRZAABRHBAEER
— NN FEEBFARATRETZR
P EER LA # Daiwa BVI Limited
BETLTBREEWNBAREEF
EMEZEZRE MER=_TZTTF
= A=t+—BWKREERRE H &
ZNTE B T E £ K B R 51,594,000 7
=

REBRE-NN—FREE - &
ABBE DK TRRE - HERF T8
AEREHZMNBRE - REBAR
g DK - 40 () 2K & T RE L HAE
BENH 2 BB () EEFEERE
EREBTIRAR RO G E 2 B -

31 March 2013

RESERVES (continued)

(b)

Note:

Company
REBBR,
A EER (REHE8)
EAEE #E (B (i) Retained
Capital Contributed earnings/
redemption surplus (accumulated At
reserve (Note i) losses) Total
FET FET FEr FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
1,402 72,309 34,503 108,214
- - (199,523) (199,523)
1,402 72,309 (165,020) (91,309)
1,402 72,309 18,016 91,727
— — 16,487 16,487
1,402 72,309 34,5083 108,214

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the difference between
the nominal amount of the Company’s shares issued in exchange for the
issued ordinary shares of Daiwa BVI Limited and the value of net assets of
its underlying subsidiaries pursuant to a group reorganisation in 1994, plus
the credit of HK$51,594,000 from share capital as a result of a reduction
of the Company’s share capital took place during the year ended 31
March 2000.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, contributed surplus is
distributable to shareholders, subject to the condition that the Company
cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed
surplus if (i) it is, or after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as
they become due, or (ii) the realisable value of its assets would thereby
be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and
share premium account.
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33. EFRERER

(a)

BB (B1R), (SFRKEERERAZF

REFRAHR

BRBAT (1), Sad e mR R LgE
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AHEE

MBHA

FEFX

oI {sE R R B

W BB RREINE

H I &

H P& ERE

FEW AR R IR ERE

EERERE

EFEZRE

IR - Mz R ER(E
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33. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH

FLOWS

(a) Reconciliation of (loss)/profit before income tax to cash

used in operations:

(Loss)/profit before income tax including
discontinued operations

Adjustments for:

Interest income

Interest expense

Amortisation of land use rights

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Amortisation of other intangible assets

Impairment of other intangible assets

Impairment of trade receivables

Provision for impairment of inventories

Direct write-down of inventories

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Impairment of available-for-sale financial
assets

Gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment — net

Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Changes in working capital:

Inventories

Trade and notes receivables

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
Trade payables

Accruals and other payables

Cash used in operations

—E—= —EF—=
2013 2012
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
(166,704) 15,951
(880) (796)
5,319 6,860
360 402
14,135 12,316
1,124 1,124
1,125 —
30,836 604
47,723 1,458
72,457 3,435
18,720 10,266
225 —
(15,059) (41,941)
(39,501) —
(30,120) 9,679
(33,116) (89,272)
(46,183) 46,071
3,026 2,866
12,719 (43,277)
27,509 (2,210)
(66,165) (26,143)
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33. EHtRERER® 33. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH
FLOWS (continued)
(b) EEHBEERERAN HELHWER (b) In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds
E-E -BERIENAERES from disposals of land use rights, and property, plant and
1% equipment comprise:
—_Eg—= —E——
2013 2012
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
BREDFE Net book amount 7,014 46,747
HE T E AR - W2 #EEKLRE  Net gain on disposal of land use rights, and

W FE property, plant and equipment 15,059 41,941
HE T FE AR - M - Proceeds from disposals of land use rights,

W28 R R FT1S 50E and property, plant and equipment 22,073 88,688
TR R - W3 - S REEIR Gain/(loss) on disposal of land use rights, and property, plant and
=/ (BiE)FENT : equipment are summarised as follows:

—Eg—= —E——

2013 2012

FET FET

HK$°000 HK$’000

BB Continuing operations 17,529 41,941
BRI TS Discontinued operations (2,470) —
15,059 41,941
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31 March 2013

34, ERUEKREXER 34. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
RZBE——F+—H=Z+=B SEHETH On 23 November 2012, the Group disposed of its equity interests in the
EEEQ ﬂZ’i\uBHx%%%i%:ﬁ R (B disposal group as set out in Note 5 to an independent third party at a
/63,168,000 7T * # R #% 13 439,501,000 total cash consideration of approximately HK$63,168,000 and a gain
iﬁﬁﬁ’iﬂﬂlf\?&(ﬁi’\iﬁsz%¢ai5) HESERH of approximately HK$39,501,000. The disposal group was principally
FEREET 2R HLHEER - involved in the distribution of electronic components.

BN EENNRETIEFHEERMNE FTEE During the year, the Group also abandoned the operations of the

HREBHEE | EB o “Consumer Electronics and Electronics Components and Parts

Manufacturing” segment.

HEEEERE THEAES  MREIDLE The disposal group together with certain related operations, and the
RBERIEREFER o abandoned segment are classified as discontinued operations.

HEAEEREHFERERAE LK ES The relevant results are presented as discontinued operations in the

% ERBFHEST - consolidated income statement. Comparative figures have been restated.

R_E—=F=ZA=1+—HFEZERILKS The results of these discontinued operations for the year ended 31

EBHEROT - March 2013 are set out below:

—E—= —EF——

2013 2012

FET FET

HK$’000 HK$’000

WA Revenue 500,246 765,601

53 Expenses (722,283) (793,441)

HERBARZ Fk= Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries 39,501 —

BRFR & E BB A Rl ES Loss before income tax (182,536) (27,840)

FEBFAZ Income tax expense (2,110) (5,224)

BRI EE BN ERE Loss for the year from discontinued operations (184,646) (33,064)

EMEEERER QA
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11,324,000 B TRB €& - RABMNERKIE - K=
T—=F=A=+—H8 ' AELZFERKMNEZE
WREE SR REEEE TR RERE SRS -

34.

31 March 2013

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued)

The major classes of assets and liabilities of the disposal group as at the

date of disposal are as follows:

Net assets disposed

Property, plant and equipment, and land use rights

Inventories

Trade receivables and other current assets
Cash and cash equivalents

Deferred income tax liabilities

Trade payables and other current liabilities
Borrowings

Tax payable

Carrying amounts of net assets disposed
Exchange reserve released

Legal and professional fee

Capital gain tax and other tax on disposal
Adjustments on consideration (Note)

Others

Gain on disposal

TET
HK$'000

2,533
58,100
138,101
46,849
(1,032
(94,728
(142,374
(1,783

5,666
(8,403)
1,105
3,444
19,567
2,288
39,501

Cash consideration in accordance with sale and purchase

agreement

Note:

63,168

The adjustment on consideration represents the original carrying amounts of any
unsold inventories or unsettled trade receivables. Pursuant to the sale and purchase
agreement, the Group is required to repay the purchaser any such balances as
at 28 February 2014 subject to a pre-determined cap. Consequently, any unsold
inventories and unsettled trade receivables as at 31 March 2013, after setting off
with the retention money withheld amounting to HK$11,324,000, are treated as
payables to the purchaser. The unsold inventories and unsettled trade receivables
are included in the Group’s inventories and trade receivables respectively as at 31

March 2013.
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31 March 2013

3. CRIEREXEK# 34. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued)
BEHEMHBZRELAE  HRZELIBELSX Total consideration in relation to the disposal, fully paid by cash

during the year

TFET
HK$’000
HEEEERREREZDN : An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the disposal group
is as follows:
RERE Cash consideration 63,168
B Less:
BERREZREBE Retention money withheld by the purchaser (11,324)
HESEREZRERIREEED Cash and cash equivalents included in the disposal group (46,849)
BRETHELAZRESRE  BIERENEELZE  Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents included in cash
W2 m AR flows from investing activities 4,995
—E—= —F—=
2013 2012
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
ERIEREERCHESRE Cash flows from discontinued operations
KEFBFTRAZFHS Net cash used in operating activities (79,571) (8,984)
REZBEE/(FTR)ZFHE Net cash generated from/(used in) investing activities 3,933 (3,233)
REEBEEZFRE Net cash generated from financing activities 18,045 14,268
REREBE Net cash flows (57,593) 2,051
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—F—=F=HA=+—H 31 March 2013
35. REEESZeMIA 35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
REFELEBzRZRERE S 2ot TEEmEWNT : The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments

as at the balance sheet date are as follows:

58
Group
—Eg—=
2013
At HE
SREE
Available-
for-sale fEEREWKRE
financial Loans and wiE
THEE Financial assets assets receivables Total
FET FET FET
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
AN ESREE Available-for-sale financial assets 15,136 - 15,136
JE U SRR TE L FE N E R Trade and notes receivables = 95,198 95,198
e & E b FE MR Deposits and other receivables - 17,119 17,119
Re RIRSEEY Cash and cash equivalents - 60,160 60,160
15,136 172,477 187,613
SEas
RS A
Financial
liabilities
at amortised e
EHEE Financial liabilities cost Total
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$°000
FEf & XERIA Trade payables 65,425 65,425
BE Borrowings 114,268 114,268
FES B A R E AT IR Accruals and other payables 41,566 41,566
221,259 221,259
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35. BEEEIsz2ERMIA 35. FINANCIAL
(&) (continued)
THEE Financial assets
AN ESREE Available-for-sale financial assets
FEU & SERRTE R B R 1 Trade and notes receivables
& M E i R UK Deposits and other receivables
Re kB EEY Cash and cash equivalents
cHEE Financial liabilities
FEfT & AR IR Trade payables
B8 Borrowings
FES B R R E A TR Accruals and other payables

aEMEEERAERARA 132
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31 March 2013

INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

£H
Group
—F—=
2012
A E
Available-
for-sale  f&E RFEWRIE
financial Loans and @l
assets receivables Total
FET FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
14,759 — 14,759
— 207,509 207,509
— 19,493 19,493
— 105,444 105,444
14,759 332,446 347,205
=N
R SHR A
Financial
liabilities
at amortised ®E
cost Total
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
143,380 143,380
266,645 266,645
19,873 19,873
429,898 429,898
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35.

36.

31 March 2013

RERES2Z2EeMIA 35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(%) (continued)
AT
Company
—E—= —ET—=
2013 2012
FETT FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
THEE—EEREKSE Financial assets — loans and receivables
Re KB EEY Cash and cash equivalents 166 81
SRIBE  REBHEHRE Financial liabilities at amortised cost
FET B A R Eo At FE T 3R Accruals and other payables 295 196
AIE 36. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

RZE—=EF_FT——F=F=+—H ¥
REMREFAHEE S EROHZE  EE
ZEBERNAERESTAT ¢

F—ER
FE_FEERFA

ms  SEZEERN—KRAH—F=2R

oif

# ok
° i

N-ZZE—=FER-_F——F=A=+—H0 A
AR B EKR Z AL -

R-F-=F=A=+—0 KWERATIE
EEAZRARE -

At 31 March 2013 and 2012, the future aggregate minimum lease
payments in respect of land and buildings under non-cancellable
operating leases were as follows:

£

Group
—E—= —F—=
2013 2012
FET T
HK$°000 HK$’000
Not later than one year 3,517 4,952
Later than one year and not later than five years 958 4,963
4,475 9,915

Generally, the Group’s operating leases are for terms of one to five
years.

The Group did not have other significant commitments at 31 March 2013
and 2012.

As at 31 March 2013, the Group and the Company have no significant
contingent liabilities.
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37. ¥1M1EA?H’H§§&ELI&WE 37. INVESTMENTS IN AND AMOUNTS DUE

RAEFIE — A F FROM SUBSIDIARIES — COMPANY
—ZE2-= —F—=
2013 2012
F#ET F&T
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE LM ARE - IRRANE Unlisted shares/investments, at cost 44,715 44,715
FEUSH B A RIZRIE Amounts due from subsidiaries 328,886 313,468
JB ORER R Less: provision for impairment (200,000) =
128,886 313,468
AEE ARMBARIzEESIRBEB N2 During the year, provision for impairment of HK$200,000,000 was
FEIRFBELEEBEE EEERBERE made on an amount due from a subsidiary as a result of the impairment
EEEBR FAFERKNBEARRELZ of assets recognised and operating losses incurred by certain major
SR 1B 48 /5 200,000,000 8 7T © sEAE BB operating entities relating to discontinued operations which are directly
MizE39 - BAik1%&  AAFRKWEBAFEEX or indirectly held by the subjected subsidiary. Subsequent to the year
—EiE REMBRARENARZRIEAR ended, the Company and the subsidiary has reached an agreement
200,000,000 # 7t (HizE39) ° which waives the amount payable by the subsidiary to the Company by

HK$200,000,000 (Note 39).

ARARZ EEMBARERT ¢ Particulars of significant subsidiaries are as follows:
R=R=1-H
FERERML
HMAL/ R Percentage
Place of TERERE ERTRARRA of equity
7 incorporation/ Principal place Issued and fully interestheldas ~ EEERER) IEEH
Company establishment of operation paid up capital at31 March  Type of legal entity Principal activities
Z%-=- Z®2C
2018 2012
EfkERE
Interests held directly
Daiwa BVI Limited ABRIRS ZERIAKS 10,0005 100%  100% BREFAF RERR
British Virgin Islands British Virgin Islands US$10,000 Limited liabilfty company Investment holdings
BEEERE
Interests held indirectly
AHETERARERAA ABRAES ABRAES 1800%7 100% 100% AREMAF REBR
Daiwa Distrioution Holdings Limited (‘DDHL")  British Virgin Islands British Virgin Islands US$1,800 Limited liability company Investmen 1t holdings
AHESRRAA ARRAES &k P 100% 100% AREMAF REBR
Daiwa Associate Limited British Virgin Islands Hong Kong US$2 Limited liability company Investment holdings
Eitte Century Holdings Limited ABRARE &t 10,000%7 100%  100% BEREEAF REBR
British Virgin Islands Hong Kong US$10,000 Limited liability company Investment holdings
FHETIERRAT & & 2B 100% 100% AREMATF LEETHEER
Cypress Electronics Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HKS2 Limited liability company Manufacture of consumer

glectronics
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37. HH
/\

BARINWEBEREWKM E 37. INVESTMENTS IN AND AMOUNTS DUE

YNGIIE-)) FROM SUBSIDIARIES — COMPANY (continued)
R=A=t-H
FERERAY
HRAL/ RIS Percentage
Place of IEOEY ERTRERRA of equity
2q incorporation/ Principal place Issued and fully interest held as  EEEREH TEEH
Company establishment of operation paid up capital at31 March  Type of legal entity Principal activities
8-z %
2018 2012
BERERES)
Interests held indirectly (continued)
EEEL A &t Ak L1003 100%  100% AREFAF mERATREER
Daiwa Associate (H.K) Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordlinary shares of Limited liability company RiHRE
HK$100; and Provision of management and
BRZRETRG administrative Senvice to
3,000,007 group companies
(Kt
Non-voting
deferred shares
of HK$3,000,000
(note (i)
ANBTARAA K ) &k &k 500000047 - 0% AREERF EFTEMAY
Daiwa Distribution Limited (Note (v)) Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 Limited fiability company Distribution of electronic
components
AHERERRAH ) &i & 10,0007 - 0% AREFRA REBR
Diawa Electronic Limited (Note (v)) Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$10,000 Limited iability company Investment holdings
ANEHERRAR Bk ) 4T 100%  100% ABREFAA PEBITENRENET
Daiwa Manufacturing Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HKS4 Limited liabiity company BREERE
Manufacture of electronic
components and
manufacturing services of
glectronic products
ANERERAT (W) Bk & 500077 - 100% ARERAT REER
Daiwa Resources Limited (Note (v) Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$5,000 Limited fiability company Investment holdings
ANE5(ER)ERAR Bk B 4T 100% 100% HREFAR REER
Daiwa Trading (Guangdong) Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HKS4 Limited fiability company Investment holdings
EERERTARAR B & 10047 100%  100% AREFAA ERy:fii
Vastpoint Imtec Electronics Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$100 Limited liabilty company Distribution of electronic
components
FRRREEEFRITERAR hH e HMRCEERG00000  100%  100% Wholy foreign-owned EFTEMAY
(Beijing Daiwa Vastpoint Electronics Mainland China Mainland China AR enterprise Distribution of electronic
Technology Limited) Registered and paid components
up capital of
RMBB00,000
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37. HIMELARMNREREWMKE 37.
ABNRE — AF @)
R=A=1-H
FERERSL
HREL/ R Percentage
Place of TERERY ERTRARRA of equity
A incorporation/ Principal place Issued and fully interest held as
Company establishment of operation paid up capital at 31 March
B -3
2018 2012
BEkERE (2
Interests held indirectly (continued)
mEET (TR ERAR e E HRECAER1200000 100%  100%
(China Faith Electronics (Heyuan) Limited) Mainland China Mainland China £
Registered and
pald up capital
US§1,200,000
AR (B ERAML ) E il S RE A 200,000 - 100%
(Daiwa Component (Shanghai) Limited) Mainland China Mainland China 9
(Note (v)) Registered and
pald up capital of
US§200,000
ANTER(RIERAR W ) 8 hEl HRRESER200000 - 100%
(Daiwa Component (Shenzhen) Limited) Mainland China Mainland China AT
(Note (v)) Registered and
paid up capital
HK$2,000,000
ANEF(TR)ERAR hE el HRREAEA3E00000 100%  100%
(Daiwa Electronics (Heyuan) Company Mainland China Mainland China 9D
Limited) Registered and paid
up capital of
US§3,600,000
AHIZE)EFIEARAA e e HRRCAEARS6L000  100%  100%
(Daiwa (Zhaoging) Electronics Industrial Mainland China Mainland China £
Limited) Registered and paid
up capital of
US§3,384,000
AREE(TRIERAT e hE RGE 100%  100%
(Unity Industrial (Heyuan) Limited) Mainland China Mainland China 2,050,000%7
Registered capital of
US$2,050,000

eEfNEmEZERERARA 136
Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited

HERREH

Type of legal entity

NERERRDT
Wholly foreign-owned
enterprise

NEEEERAT
Wholly foreign-owned
enterprise

NETEEEAT
Wholly foreign-owned
enterprise

NETEREAT
Wholly foreign-owned
enterprise

ERERERA
Wholly foreign-owned
enterprise

NERERRLT
Wholly foreign-owned
enterprise

31 March 2013

INVESTMENTS IN AND AMOUNTS DUE
FROM SUBSIDIARIES — COMPANY (continueq)

2331

Principal activities

BESTHEER
Manufacture of consumer
glectronics

BmAkEY
Distrioution of electronic
components

BTEkEH
Distribution of electronic
components

BNETERAERRR
BEITHEED

Contract electronic
manufacture senvice and
manufacture of consumer
glectronics

BESTHEER
Manufacture of electronic
components

BEERER

Manufacture of electric wires
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37. HIBLARANKBREREWRKE 37.

ARKE —

2q
Company

HEREREE)

YNCIIE )

HRAL/ RUE
Place of
incorporation/
establishment

Interests held indirectly (continued)

ERRES TR ARAR
(Vastpoint Imtec Electronics (Shenzhen)

Linited)

REETE5(LB)ERAR
Viastpoint Imtec Electronics (Shanghai) Ltd.

Daiwa Distribution (B.C.) Inc.

Daiwa Distribution (Ontario) Inc.

Daiwa Holdings Inc.

EE

[0) ERFAIARRZHBA

hE
Mainland China

HE
Mainland China

NErZEFRILE
British Columbia, Canada

MEAZAR®E

Ontario, Canada

EFN Y]

Ontario, Canada

Al DARRRIER

(ii)

(il

(iv)

EAGSEERERSEARBAERXER
ERER  IFAAEEAMNEEFELZ
MEQR  EREEMGHBRARZER &
ZERRHBRITE

&ﬂgéﬁﬁ%@&ﬁ&ﬂ‘é&{ai””Eﬁk
ETAHE  BRIEBRBRRACEHEAE
100,000,000,000,000 % 7T

BE_Z—=FfKR_ZT——F=A=+—H
%ET*MYEQEH%E@E%GZ%%E
MBS EE R
A% BEERNBAFFX

CIRNE: TS /N
EEBEREL -

BN BREBEEEHZS THAEMRE  SEHIU
# X8 63,168,000/8 L E T Zab BB A
A FEBERHIFESS o

IpOeny
Principal place
of operation

hE
Mainland China

hEl
Mainland China

JIEFN

Canada

mex

Canada

JIEIN

Canada

31 March 2013

INVESTMENTS IN AND AMOUNTS DUE
FROM SUBSIDIARIES — COMPANY (continued)

Notes:

(ii)

(il

(iv)

R=A=t-H
FERERAY
Percentage
ERTRERRA of equity
Issued and fully interest held as  EEERER TEEH
paid up capital at31 March  Type of legal entity Principal activities
8-z %
2018 2012
iMREEER 100%  100% JMERARALR BTN
2,000,007 Wholly foreign-owned Distribution of electronic
Registered and paid enterprise components
up capital of
HK$2,000,000
iHREHER 100% 100% SME2EEEAA EFRERES
30000057 Wholly foreign-owned Distribution of electronic
Registered and paid up enterprise components
capital US8300,000
300,000/ 100%  100% ABRELAA HERAHERERR
CAD300,000 Limited liabiity company ESn
Sales and distribution of
computer and electronic
products
700,000 307 100%  100% HREFAR HERARERERR
CAD700,000 Limited liabiity company ETER
Sales and distribution of
computer and electronic
products
2301517 100% 100% HREFAR RERK
(CAD223,015 Limited fiability company Investment holdings

The above list includes the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the

opinion of the Company’s directors and the Group’s management,
principally contributed the results or formed a substantial portion of the net
assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would result in

particulars of excessive length.

The non-voting deferred shares have no voting rights, and are not entitled
to any distributions upon winding up unless a sum of HK$100,000 billion
has been distributed to the holders of ordinary shares.

None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital in issue at any time during

the years ended 31 March 2013 and 2012.

The English names of the group companies incorporated in Mainland China
represent the best effort by the directors in translating its Chinese name as

they do not have official English names.

During the year, the Group disposed of these subsidiaries at a total
consideration of HK$63,168,000, subject to certain adjustments stipulated
in the sale and purchase agreement, details of which are set out in Note

34.
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ZF=H=1+—H

FREALRS

RZZT—=%F=H=+—H ' Leading Trade
Limited & China Capital Holdings Investment

Limited 2 BB AN AR 19.32% (=T — — 4 :
19.32%) }2.33.98% (— =& — — 4 : 33.98%) i%
o mMAAREBAARESZFELERR

PR S - IR R RARERAL -
MASERETFEERAB ZERBEHEA
MEHERRERERE T RMBMEERE
*ﬁi FERRZIANETL - RAKEMZ

XERFANBEATE AR R/AEENE
EE BEAL FREALAIUZBEARERE

BEBREL B FROBEALERS -
REBERBBA LR AR EEDT T HEAR
BALR SRS A LR 5 A S
mF :

38.

31 March 2013

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

As at 31 March 2013, Leading Trade Limited and China Capital Holdings
Investment Limited owned 19.32% (2012: 19.32%) and 33.98% (2012:
33.98%) of the Company’s shares respectively. These companies are
under the control of the Company’s directors, Mr. Lau Tak Wan and
Ms. Chan Yuen Mei, Pinky, who are collectively regarded as the ultimate
controlling parties.

Parties are considered to be related to the Group if the Group or any
member of its key management personnel or their close family members
has the ability, directly or indirectly, to exercise significant influence over
the parties in making financial and operating decisions, or vice versa,
or where the Group and the parties are subject to common significant
influence. Related parties may be individuals or entities.

The following is a summary of significant related party transactions
entered into in the ordinary course of business between the Group
and its related parties and the balances arising from related party
transactions in addition to the related party information shown elsewhere
in the financial statements.

(a) BEHEBREALTZRS (a) Transactions with related parties
=M
Group

—E—= —EF—=
2013 2012
it FET FET
Note HK$’000 HK$'000

NEEHRERS% Operating lease rental paid to 361 Alden
361 Alden Inc. Inc. (i) 1,360 1,358
NE==8EERH Interest expenses to directors (ii) - 785

Hie# - Notes:

(i) 361 Alden Inc. B2I15:& 5t £ KR (i) 361 Alden Inc. is beneficially owned by Mr Lau Tak Wan and Ms
Baxt(RARRES)XRES - Chan Yuen Mei, Pinky, directors of the Company. Operating lease

BEHEME M XRGHREIARE

(ii) XNEEZHEERRREE SN
HE=RTENIEE %?Mﬁ%%%ig
12%&TE - EFEEMNERERD
HEE -
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rental expense is determined at rate mutually agreed between the
parties.

(if) The interest expenses paid to the directors are calculated at 12%
per annum in accordance with the relevant loans agreements
entered into between the Group and the respective directors. All
the loans from directors had been settled in the last year.
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(b) BEEREALHRE

31 March 2013

38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continueq)

(b) Balances with related parties
AT
Company
—_Eg—= —E——
2013 2012
Hat FET FET
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
FEU BB A RFRIE(H7237  Amounts due from subsidiaries (Notes 37
X 39) and 39) (i) 128,886 313,468
Hat Note
(i) FEWHEB AT RIEY AEIER - & (i) The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured and non-
T B R & A R HamH interest bearing, and have no fixed terms of repayment. These
B BT o amounts are denominated in HKS.
(©) TESE A S TR (c) Key management compensation
£5
Group
—F2—= T ——
2013 2012
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000
T & KRG Salaries and allowances 5,043 7,655
TE4T Bonuses 2,024 1,258
BRARERA — EREMH Pension costs — defined contribution plans 232 348
7,299 9,261
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“F-—#-H-F1-H 31 March 2013
39. HERHESIH 39. EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO THE BALANCE
SHEET DATE
REEHR  SEENSEMREEZERR Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the Group obtained letters of
TEENARCBREETAEBERHE 2= (KE waiver on the strict compliance of restrictive banking covenants from two
2.1) o AN RAIEEBRARIERET Bk 0 B of its principal bankers as detailed in Note 2.1. In addition, an agreement
% JIE Yz Bt /BB /2 7] 200,000,000 7 JT I FX ° BRIL was also entered into between the Company and its subsidiary waiving
AN  WEHMAEBEREEENA HUTRK the repayment of an amount of HK$200,000,000 receivable by the
R P TN FE o Company from the subsidiary. Other than these, there were no other

significant events subsequent to the balance sheet which require
adjustments to or additional disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements.

aMEEERAERRXA 140
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